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Ldpez-Vega, CPA, PSC

Certified Public Accountants / Management Advisors

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Honorable Mayor and
the Munlcipal Legislature
Autonomous Municipality of Dorado
Dorado, Puerto Rico

We.have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the
Autonomous Municipality of Dolado, puerto Rico (Municlpality), as oi and for the year ended
June 30,2011, which collectively comprise the Municipality,i basic financial statements as
listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the
Municipality's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, lssued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
respective financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the respective
flnancial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statements presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

ln our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business type.activities,
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Autonomous
Municipallty of Dorado, Puerto Rico, as of June 30, 207L, and the respective changes in
financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the year then ended in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

ln accordance with Goyernment Auditing Standatds, we have also issued our report dated
December 23, 2O11, on our consideration of the Autonomous Municipallty of Dorado,s internal
control over financlal reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that
report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control
over financial reporting or on compliance, That report is an integral part of an audit performed
in accordance r,yith covernment Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the
results of our audit.

llenrber of:
. Am€rican Institute of

Certifi ed Public ^{ccountants. Puerto Lico Soc:eE of
( efified l>ublic {ccourtnlts

Callc Paraai 41686, El Cciezal, San ruar\ P.R. 00926-3144 -Tcl. (787) 77i-8044 Fax (ig7) i64-9371



Accounting principles generally accepted in the united states of America require that the
management's discussion and anajysis and budgetary comparison information on pages 3
through 11 and 61 be presented to supprem;nt ihe basic financiar statements. such
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, js required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of fin;ncial
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economjc, or
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedu;es to the iequired supplementary
information in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United State;
of,America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management,s responses to
our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obiained during our audit
of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on
the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to
express an oplnion or provide any assurance.

our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the Autonomous Municipallty of Dorado's basic financial statements as a
whole, The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes
of additional analysis as required by U.S. office of Management and Budget Circular A_133,
Audits of State, Local Governments, and Non-profit Organizations, and is not a required part of
the basic financial statements. The schedule of expenditures of federal awards is the
responsibility of management and is derived from and related direcfly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information ha;
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit ofthe basic financial statements
and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information
directly to the underlying accounting and other procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. ln our opinion, the information is
fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

{,mlm,@,,te
San.luan, Puerto Rico
December 23,2011

Stamp No. 2575542 of the Puerto Rico
Society of Certified Public Accountants
was affixed to the record copy of this report.

l,aipez-Vega, C PA, PSC 2

:,^r{ I Mrnrrdmehr Advi!,f!Cenific(l P,,bli. Acc6rinr

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT (CONTINUED')



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
ATIIONOMOUS MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As management of the Municipality of Dorado (Municipality), we offer readers of the
N,lunicipality's basic financial statements this narrative overview and analysis ofthe financial
activities of the Municipality as of and for the fiscat year ended Ju;e 30, 2011. This
lvanagement's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) includes comparative data, and it has been
designed accordingly with the following goals:

a) Assist the reader in focusing on significant financial issues:b) Provide an overview of the N4unicipality's financial activity;c) ldentiry changes in the l\4unicipatity,s financiat position (its ability to address
the next and subsequent year challenges);

d) ldentify any material deviations from the financial plan (the approved budget,)
and;

e) ldentify individual fund issues or concerns.

Since the MD&A is designed to focus
currently known facts, please read
statements.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

on the current year activities, resulting changes and
it in conjunction with the lvlunicipality's financial

. The lvlunicipality net assets decreased by $5,151,558.. ln the fund financial statements, the governmental activities revenues decreased
$1,783,670 (or 5%) and governmental activities expenditures increased $291,416
(ot 7%1.

The General Fund (the primary operating fund) reflected, on a current financial
resource basis, a decrease of $6,069,628.
On a budgetary basis, actualexpenditures exceeded actual revenues by $5,659,593.
The Municipality issued bonds and notes amounting to $6,764,000 and $48O,OOO,
respectively, to finance the acquisition of properties and construction and
improvement of municipal facilities and roads.

3



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
AUTONOMOUS MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO

MANAGEMEN-rS D|SCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS (CONTINUED)

UsingThis Annual Report

This annual report consists of a series of new financial statements with a change in the
focus from previous financial statements. The new focus is on both the N4uniciptlity as a
whole (government-wide) and the major individual funds. Both perspectives (government_
wide and major fund) allow the user to address relevant questions, broaden a basis for
comparison (year to year or government to government) and enhance the Municipality,s
accountability.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The Government-wide Financiar statements are designed to provide users of the financiar
statements with a broad overview of the lvlunicipality,s finances in a manner similar to
private-sector compa nies.

The Fund Financial Statements provide detailed information about the Nlunicipatity,s most
significant funds, not the Municipality as a whole. The Mu nicipality has only one kind of fu nd
which is the governmental fund.

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported
governmental activities in the Government Wide Financial Statements.

4

The Statement of Net Asset presents information on all of the Municipality,s assets and
liabilities, with the difference between both reported as net assets. Over time, increases or
decreases in net assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of
the Municipality is improving or deteriorating.

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the lVunicipality,s net assets
changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon
as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of the
related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in the Statement of Activities
that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods. The statement of Activities is
focused on both the gross and net cost of various activities, which are provided by the
government's general tax and other revenues. This is intended to summarize and simplify
the user's analysis of cost of various governmental services.

Fund Financial Statements



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
AUTONOMOUS MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO

MANAGEMEN,rS DECUSSION AND ANALYSIS - (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS (CONTINUED)

However, unlike the Government Wide Financial Statements, Government Fund Financial
Statements, focus on near term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on
balances of spendabre resources avairabre at the end of the fiscar year. such information is
useful in evaluating the Municipality,s near term financial requirem;nts.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government wide
financial statements, it is useful to compare the information presented ior governmental
funds with simirar information presented for governmentar activities in the government wide
financial statements. By doing so, users of the basic financial statements may better
understand the long-term impact of the lMunicipality's near term financial decisions. Both of
the Governmental Fund Balance Sheet and the Governmental Fund Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures and changes in Fund Balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this
comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

Infrastructure Assets

Historically, a significant group of infrastructure assets such as roads, bridges, traffic
signals, underground pipes not associated with utilities, have not been recognized nor
depreciated in the accounting records of the Municipality. GASB 34 requires that such type
of assets be inventoried, valued ad reported under the governmental column of the
Government-Wide Statement, As of July I, 2OO2, the Municipality commenced the
prospective reporting of infrastructure assets, and reported historical costs for such assets
in the fiscal year endingJune 30, 2007.

According to the requirements of GASB 34, the government must etect to either
(a)depreciate the aforementioned assets over their estimated useful life of (b) develop a
system of asset management design to maintain the service delivery to near perpetuity. lf
the government develops the asset management system, (the modified approach) which
periodically (at least every three years), by category, measures and demonstrate its
maintenance of locally established levels of service standards, the government may record
its cost of maintenance in lieu of depreciation. ln this particular respect, the municipality has
elected the use of recognizing depreciation under the useful life method and it contemplates
to continue this treatment on said basis.

5



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
AUTONOMOUS MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE MUNICIPALIry AS A WHOLE

Net Assets

The Statement of Net Assets serves as an important indicator of the Municipality,s financial
position at the end of the fiscal year. ln the case of the Municipality of Dorado, primary
government assets exceeded totat tiabilities by $84,937,418 at the end of 2OI1,, as
compared with $90,088,976, as restated, which reflect a decrease of $5,151,55g over
previous fiscal year. The following condensed Statement of Net Assets of the primary
Government shows on a comparative basis the most important components of the
$5,151,558 decrease se reflected in the Net Assets figure.
condensed statemenl of Net assels 2077

I 3oss1,6r?
727,5a5,575
1,52,131 .202

Change %2070
Current and other assers

Cu(ent and olher liabilities
Long-term riabi{iries
TotalLiabilities
lnvested in capitalassets, net of retated

$ 31,489,779
116,417,305

$ (938,152)
5,164,270

l3)"

3%

192)ya
(8)%

(761%

147,907.OA4 4.230,LtA
10,700,562
56,499,222

5,569,231
52,244,477

(5,131,331)
(4,250,345)
(9,381,676)67,199,784 57,a1a,108

74,092,576 70,167,091
27,323,086 25,554,A24

{16,474,244) (5,632,939)
$ 84.e3l4fq ! Jgpqs.r]q

3,925,4a5 6%
1,764,262 7%

(10,84s,305) (193)%

$(5,151,558) t6)%

s200,000,000

S15o,ooo,ooo

5100,000,000

ss0,000,000

5-

r2011

a2012
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
AUTONOMOUS MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE MUNICIPALITY AS A WHOLE (CONTINUED)

Changes in Net Assets

The N4unicipality's net assets decrease by $5,151,559. Approximately fifty seven percent
(5770) of the Munlcipality's total revenue came from taxes, ;hile thiftyleven percent (37%)
resulted from grants and contributions, including federal aid. Charge; for Services provided
one percent (1%) of the total revenues_ Interest earnings two percent (2%) and
miscellaneous provided one percent (1%) of the total revenues. The lr.4unicipality,s expenses
cover a range of services. The largest expenses were for general government, public works
and health and welfare. As follow, is presented a comparatve an;lysis of government_wide
data. ln this analysis was determined the percentage change in revenues and expenditures
from prior year to current year.

Condensed Sbtement of Activities 2OaL 20to Change

Charges for services
Operating gra nts a nd

Capital grants and conrributions

i,4unicipal license tar
[,lun icipa I sales and use rax
GranG and contributions not

restricted to specinc programs

lnterestand investment earn ings

General govern ment

Culture and rccreation
Economic development
Community development

lnterest on longterm debt

Net assets, beginningas restated
Net assets, end of year

$ 353,755

4,236,852
324,434

13,171,993
3,623,153
2,087,6A7

3,664,817
749,399
504,449
372,627

33.071.966

$ 442,742

7,448,457
1,811,584

72,275,067
5,194,256
1,944,150

3,O72,446
1,651,704

532,331
477,395

$ (88,987) t21o )

744,395 a|%
(1,486,750) $2%)

496,926 7%
(1,575,103) (30%)

137,537 7%

596,371 tgyr
(862,305) (s2%)

Q3.444 @%l(164,768) (35%)

(L,7a2, (5%)

14.904,724
1,905,435
4,84?.,L42
7.71L,370
2,534,!!a

87,399
533,158

2,620
3,940

1,699,638
34,223,524

13,570,476
1,893,369
1,060,638
5,549,667
2,094,433

727,987
431,467

4,254
4,2L9

1,543,996--rEz?19ft-

1L,334.248) ].0%
(12,066) tya

(7,7a0,504) 734y"
(2,161,643) 39ya
(439,285) 2Lyo

40,588 (32%)
(101,691) 24%

1,638 (38%)
Q,76r) 226%

(155,642) aO%

111,945.614) 45%

(5,151,554)
90,044,976-t---733r71t

4,576,222
8!,5!2,754-$--- eoIE&-O?6

l!3,727,74O) (160)%
4,576,222 aa%-$ 6J5fF5E) (6%)
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
AUTONOMOUS MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

FINANCIAL ANATYSIS OF THE MUNICIPALITY AS A WHOLE (CONNNUED)

Revenues 2011 I Charges for servic€s

I Operating grants and
contributions

r Capitalgrants and convibutions

. Other localtaxes

llMunicipalsales and use tax

I Muni€ipal license tax

! Grants and contributions not
.estricted to specific programs

v Interest and investment earnings

Expenses 2011
I General government

r Publlc safety

c Public works

aCultLrre and recreation

aHealth and welfare

E Community development

r lnterest on lonEterm debt

8



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
AUTONOMOUS MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO

MANAGEMENT'S DTSCUSSTON AND ANALYS|S _ (CONTTNUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE MUNICIPALIry'S INDIVIDUAL FUNDS

As noted earlier, the Municipality uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate
compliance with fjnance related legal requirements_

Govetnmental Funds

The focus of the N4unicipality's governmental funds is to provide information on near_term
inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in
assessing the Municipality's financing requirements. ln particular, unreserved fund balance
may serve as a useful measure of a government's net resources available for spending at
the end ofthe fiscalyear.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the Municipality's governmental funds reported
combined ending fund balances of $23,007,978, a decrease of $4,246,133 in comparison
with the prior year. There are restricted fund balances amounting to $2g,306,g73. This is
the fund balance that it is not available for new spending because it has already been
committed 1) to pay debt service $6,120,921, 2) to pay tot capital projects $21,654,083
and 3)for other purposes $531,869.

As of June 30, 2011 the General Fund, which is the main operating fund of the lvunicipality,
and the Other covernmental Funds, reftected an unassigned fund deficit of ($5,091;316),
and ($207,579), respectivety.

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

Over the course of the year, the N4unicipality Legislature revised the lr.4unicipality's budget in
order to include increases in revenues that were identified during the course of the fiscal
year based on current developments that posjtively affected th; Municipality's finances.
lncreases in budgeted expenditures were also made since the law mand'ates a balanced
budget.



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
AUTONOMOUS MUNICIPATITY OF DORADO

MANAGEMENT'S AND DISCUSSION ANALYSIS - (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets

The Municipality's investment in capital assets for Governmental Activities as of June 30,
2011 amounts to $141,a57,689 with an accumulated depreciation ot $22,9!7,775,
leaving a net book value of $118,939,914. For Business - Type Activities investments in
capital assets as of June 30, 2OLL amounts to $3,971,64g, with an accumutated
depreciation of $1,325,987, leaving a net book vatue of $2,645,661. This investment in
capital assets includes land, buildings, improvements, equipment, infrastructure and
construction in progress. lnfrastructure assets are items that are normally immovable and
of value only to the state, such as roads, bridges, streets and sidewalks, drainage systems,
lighting systems, and similar items.

The total increase in the lMunicipality's investment in capital assets in the current fiscal year
was about 4% in terms of net book value. Depreciation charges for the year tot;led
$1,945,915.

The ft4unicipality finances a significant portion of its construction activities through bond
issuances. The proceeds from bond issuances designated for construction activities are
committed in its entirety for such purposes and cannot be used for any other purposes. As
of June 30, 2011, the Municipatity has $15,956,805 of unexpended proceeds from bond
issuances that are committed to future construction activities in Governmental Activities and
$157,702 in Business-Type Activities.

Debt Administration

The Puerto Rico Legislature has established a limitation for the issuance of general
obligation municipal bonds and notes for the payment of which the good faith, credit and
taxing power of each municipality may be pledged.

The applicable law also requires that in order for a l\Iunicipality to be able to issue additional
general obligation bonds and notes such Municipality must have sufficient.payment
caPacity".

Act No. 64 provides that a municipality has sufficient ..payment capacity,,to incur additional
general obligation debt if the deposits in such municipality's Redemption Fund and the
annual amounts collected with respect to such l\,4unicipality,s Special Additional Tax (as
defined below), as projected by GDB, will be sufficient to service to maturity the
Nlunicipality's outstanding general obligation debt and the additional proposed general
obligation debt ('Payment Capacity").

10



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
ATITONOMOUS MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO

MANAGEMENT5 AND DISCUSSION ANALYSIS - (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION- (CONTINUED):

The Municipality is required under applicable law to levy the Special Additional Tax in such
amounts as shall be required for the payment of its general obljgation municipal bonds and
notes. ln addition, principal of and inlerest on all general obligation municipal bonds and
notes and on all municipal notes issued in anticipation of the issuance of general obligation
bonds issued by the Municipality constitute a first lien on the L4unici;ality,s Basic Tax
revenues. Accordingly, the Municipality's Basic Tax revenues would be available to make
debt service payments on general obligation

Municipal bonds and notes to the extent that the Special Additional Tax levied by the
l\4unicipality, together with moneys on deposit in the Municipality's Redemption Fund, are
not sufficient to cover such debt service. lt has never been necessary to apply Basic Taxes
to pay debt service on general obligation debt of the Municipality.

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS AND RATES

The lvunicipality relies primarily on property and municipal taxes as well as federal grants to
carry out the governmental activities. Historically, property and municipal taxes have been
very predictable with increases of approximately five percent. Federal grant revenues may
very if new grants are available but the revenue also is very predictable. Those factors were
considered when preparing Municipality,s budget for the fiscal year 2OII_2OI2.

FINANCIAL CONTACT

The lvunicipality's financial statements are designed to present users (citizens, taxpayer,
customers, investors and creditors) with a general overview of the Municipality's finances
and to demonstrate the Municipality's accountability. lf you have questions about the report
or need additional financial information, contact the Municipality's chief Financial officer at
PO Box 588, Dorado, Puerto Rico 00646-Ob8B, Telephone (7a7)796_!230.

LL



Commonwealth of Puerto Rico
Autonomous lVuntclpatity of Dorado

statement of Net Assets

June 30,2011

24!,204

751,742

344,790

2,256,47t
2,645,661

624,000

Cash aid cash equivatents

Land, rmprcremenls, and @nstrudion in progrss
other capital eets, nei of dep@iaiion

Liabilitles
Ac@unG payabieand accrued tiab tities

Due to orh€r governmentat entn es

Fede6lgEnt revenues

Oue in morethan one year

Iotat tiabtttttes

lnlested in .ap tal asers, net of ctated debl

7,700,768

22,O38,353

51,791

65,521

41847
173,473

4o,974

86,059,549

32pa0365

7,941,972

22196,055

51,791

65,521

46,448,339

35,137,236
114,939,914 12!5a5,575

149092,635 752137,202

3920,455
3,016,193

127,371

2.44!,72a

750,24?

3,987,341

51,757€a1

3,920,455

3,016,193

121,317

2,447,728

444 622
750,247

523A1881

5 82,646,a51 i ::9n6?

12,200,9!5

21,654,083

5,370,674

294,329
(16,477,150)

21,654,083

5,370,674

294.329

116,474,244)

$ a4,937,418

The notes to the financiat statements are an integrat part of th is statements. !2



Commonwe.ttn of Puedo Rtco
Autonomous tUonicipatity of Oorado

statement of activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

The notestothefinanca statements are an ntegra pan ofthts sratement. 13



Commonwealh of puedo Rico
Autonomous Municipatiiy of Oorado

BalanceSheet
covernmentat Fuhds

lune30,2011

qdbl P.oj*

120i s79l
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Commohweatth of puero Rt@
Autonomous Municlpatity of Dorado

Statement of Revehu6, Expenditures and changes in Fund Batances
covernmentat Funds

For the Year Ended lune 30,2011

c.pharE i4 Epharhod

2'041.541

131010

EeMfu6

_cmhuni(yd4lopmeni

EiEs {dsff.iaq) d ftnu6 os
(unde4 wndtuB (s,2@.s3e)

1Aoo,se)

(16,0{) 11443a5) @,246133j

!cj!:!2! 16,616,569 4'*,46!

tM7
'1r\-

Th6 nol6lolhe linancalstateme.ts are an nbgralpart ot lhis staiemenl 15



Commonwealth ot puerto Rico
Autonomous Municipality of Dorado

Reconciliatlon ofthe Balance Sheet - covernmentalFunds
to the Statement of Net Assets

Forthe Year Ended June 30, 2011

- lotat Fund Bat.nces - Gove,trmenrar Funds S 2g.O,7.s7a

_ Amouds @ported for Govemmentat Act vities n lhe Statement of Net A$eG
are dderenr be€use:

Caplta assets used in governmentatactivities are notfinanc atresourc6 and therefore,
are not reported in the funds.ln the cuirent period,rheseamounrsare:

Non depreciable €p ta a$ets
_ Depreciabte capitat a$ets

Accumutated depreciation

v lolat epitatasets

Some of ihe Mlnicipatty! revenues w I be colected after year end but are noravaitabte
soon enough to payforthe cufient per od s expendr(ure and theefore, are defered in

- the tunds:

Gene6l bondsand notes paFbte

P.operty taies debt - Law 146
ProPerty taxes debl ' Law 42
Com pensted absences

$ 46,059,549

55,798,140

122,917 ,715)

114,939,914

Conslru.tio. Exc se Tai 50,000

- lccounS payabte acclmutaied accord ng ro lhe accruatbasis ofaccounting. nthecurenr
pe.iodthoseadountspayabteamountto: 

\2,A55,572)

- Some liabtitiesare notdueand payab e in ihe clrent oer od andthereiore. are noi
reponed in thefunds.Those tiabi ies consistof:

49,7A0,000

4a,saa
249,556
232.442

3,046,747

435,000

42,472
1,a703a3

lora ongterm tabitties

Ac!.ued interest payabte are not due and payabte in th€ cufienl penod and lheretore.
are not reported in the tunds. Those interest payabte mounl to:

_ Totat Net a$ets of Governme.tat Activities

155.7 45,222)

t75O,247)

The nores lo the linanciat statements are an inlegrat part of this stalement.

$ a2,646,a51



Commonwealth of puerto Rico
Autonomous Municlpality of Dolado

Reconciliation ofthe Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances of

Govehmental FundstotheStatementof Activiues
Forthe Year Ended June 30,2011

Net Change In Flnd Batanc6 - Torat c@emmenld Funds

Amounts reported lor governmentatact vities in ihe Statement ot Activitis are dfferenl be6use:

Changes n Net Assets, the cost or th6e assers is alocated over rhek esrimated usefut lives as dep.eciation expense. I h s
rs the amounl oi €pita a$ets recorded n the cutrent penod.

Donations of c€pitalAssets from outside panies, do rot provide cure.t financialresourcB n Govenmenta Funds bur
lhetGnsction must be refteded n the Gover.menlwide statemenl0i Net A$ets based or thefair vatue of the donated

GovernmentalFunds Gpo.t captataseG sotd as revenues. uowever, in the covernment.wide starement ot actrvtues ard
changes in Net Assets, D sposar ot .ap(ar a$ets requne removarof cGt of the capitatasts from the.aDirarasets
account on the Governmentwide 9alement of Net Assets.

oep.eciation E&ene on capitar asets s reponed in the colernment-wide statements of Acriviti6 a.d change rn Nei
asset , bLl they do not requne the use oi c0(ent financiat resou.c6. Therefore, Depreciation expe.se is not reponed as
erpenditurB in Gove.nmentat Funds Financ at Statements.

lnterEt Expense change is reported nthe coverrment.wide Statehent of Activrl6 and Cha.ge in Net A$e15, but not
@qu].e the use oi cuiient i nanciat reoures Therefore, tnterest expense change is nol reported as expe.d tures n
Govemhenta Funds Fi.anciat Statements.

accounts pavabre change is reported in the Govehment-wde sialement of Activilies and change in Net Assets, but not
reponed as in the Govemmenta Funds, because they do nol require the use oi cutreft fnanciar resources. This is the
amount reported in the cutrent perod.

Long te/m debt isua.ces a.e repoded in the Governmenrwrde statement ot Net Asets, bu1 not require the lse of
cured inancial /esourc6. The/efore, Long rem debt isuances are nor reporred as expenditu.E n covem menrat Funds

LonE term debts parments are reported as expenditu.es in the covemmenlat Fu.ds FinancialStatements which req!rc
the use of curent f nancial r6olrces. Therefore Long rerm debt palments a/e not.eported as expenditure rn tne
Governfrent-Wide Statement ofActiv!6and Change n Net Assets.

Bonds proceeds provide cured rinanciar r*oures to GovernmentarFunds, but rssuing debi rn*ease rongierm abirities
in l,he Govemmenlwide statemed of Net Assets. Repayment ofbond pi.cipa isa. expendirure in colernmentatFlnds,
bul the repayment redue tong -term tiabititis in ihe Governmenlwrde Statement of Net A$ets. Ths is the 6mount bv
whichthe debtsetolceprtncipa payfrents exceed the debt proceeds

(4,246.733],

4,401

(1,290)

(1,945,915)

7,2A0,246

t97,317)

17,o77,947)

652,955

(1.954,345)

(3,767,000)

Change in Net Asers ot Governmenrat A.iiviiier 15,231,945)

The notes to the f.afciatstarements are an inteEralpart ofthis statement. 17



Commonwealth of puerto Rico
Autonomous Municipality of Dorado

Statement of Net Assets
Proprietary Fund-Business Type Activity-Enterpise Fund

Year Ended June 30,2011

BusinessType

Activitiy
Enterprise

As.sets

Cufient Assetsi
Cash and cash equivatents
Cash with fiscal agent

Total current assets

Noncurrent Assets:

CapitalAssets:

Propeny, and equipment:
Land

Building

Accumulated depreciation

Total nonrurrent assets

Total assets

Liabilitles:
Non-cunent liabllities:

Due within one year

Due in more than one year

Total current liabitities

Tota iabitities

lnvested in CapitatAssets, net of related debt
[]nrestricted

241,204
757,702

398,906

388,790
3,5a2,A58

(7,325,9a7',)

2,645,661

3,O44,567

130,OOO

624,OOO

754,000

754,000

1,491,661
394,906

The notes tothe fina ncia I statements are an integrat part ot this statement.

2,290,567
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Commonwealth of puefto Rico
Autonomous Municipallty of Dorado

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets
Proprietary Fund-Business Type Activity-Enterprise Fund

Year Ended June 30, 2011

Operating revenues:

Charges for services

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:

Operations and maintenance

Depreciation and amortizalion

Total operating expenditures

Operating income (Loss)

Change in Net Assets

Total net assels-beginning

Total nei assets-ending

Business - Type
Activities
Enterprise

$ 195,313

195,3'13

25,354

49,572

114,926

80,387

80,387

2,210,1AO

$ 2,290,s67

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part ofthis statement. a9



Commonwealth ot puefto Rico
Autonomous Municipality of Dorado

Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Fund-Business Type Activity-Enterprise Fund

Year Ended lune 30,2011

Cash Flows fiom OoeratinE Ac vities:

Receipts from Customers
Payment to Suppliers

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

Cash Flows from Caottatand Retated Financind Activites:

lssuance of Revenue Bond
Repayment of Revenue Bond

Net Cash Provided (ljsed) in Capttatand Retated Financtng Activities

Net Decrease in Cash and Cash wllh FiscatAgent, Restricted

Cash and Cash with FiscatAgent at BeEinningof period, Restricted

Cash and Cash with FiscatAgent at End of period, Restrjcted

Reconclliation ofOoerating lncome to Net Cash provided 1used) by
OoeratinE Activlties:

Operating lncone (Loss)

Adjustmentsto Reconcite Operating tncome to Net Cash Used by Operating Activities:

Depreciation

Total Adjustments

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operattng Activities

Noncash investing, capitaland fina ncing activities:

$ 195,313

169,959

7s4,OOO

(727,246)

26,7 74

$ 39a.906

80,387

49,572

49,572

796,673

202,233

$ 169,959

The notestothefinanciat statementsare an integrat partof thisstatement. 20



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
AUTONOMOUS MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAT STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

1, ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Autonomous Municipality of Dorado (the lMuniclpality) was founded on the yeat !g42.
The l\,lunicipality's governmental system consists of an executive and legislature body. lt is
governed by a lvayor and a fourteen member r\4unicrpar Legisrature who are erected for a four-
year term.

The N,lunicipality provides public safety, public works, culture and recreation, health and
welfare, community development, education, and other miscellaneous services.

The accounting policies and financial reporting practices of the l\4unicipality conform to
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America ("USGAAP,,) as
applicable to governmental units.

ln June 1999, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement No.
34, "Basic Financial Statements and Management's and Discussion and Analysis for State
and Local Governments." This Statement, known as the Reporting N4odel, provides for the
most significant change in financial reporting for state and local governments in over 20 years
and affects the way the Municipality prepares and presents financial information. The
Statement was adopted as of July 1, 2002. ln addition to this Statement, GASB Statement No.
37, "Basic Financial Statements and Management's Discussion and Analysis for State and
Local Governments: Omnibus" and GASB Statement No.3g, ,,Certain Financial Statement
Note Disclosures" have been adopted and are reflected in these financial statements.

As part of this Statement, there is a new reporting requirement regarding the capitalization of
local government infrastructure (roads, bridges, traffic signals, etc.). This requirement permits
an optional four-year delay for implementation to fiscal year 2007. The Nrunicipality
implemented the capitalization of infrastructure since July 1, 2006.

ln N4arch 2009, the Municipatity adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No.55, Ihe
Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting principtes for State and Local covernments
(GASB No. 55), and GASB Statement No. 56, Codification of Accounting and Financiat
Reportin1 Guidance Contained in the AtCpA Statements on Auditing Standards (GASB No_
56).

GASB No. 55 incorporated the hierarchy of USGMP for state and local governments into the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board,s (GASB) authoritative literature. The
requirements in this Statement codify all USGMP for state and local governments so that they
derive from a single source.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
AUTONOMOUS MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

1. ORGANTZATTON AND SUMMARY OF StcNtFICANT ACCOUNTTNG pOLtCtES (CONTTNUED)

GASB No. 56 incorporated into the Governmental Accounting Standards Board,s (GASB)
authoritative literature certain accounting and financial reporting guidance presented in the
American lnstitute of certified pubric Accountants' statements o; Auditing standards. This
statement addressed three issues not incruded in the authoritative riterature that estabrishes
accountinE principles-related party transactions, going concern considerations, and
subsequent events.

ln the current year, the lrlunicipality adopted the provisions of GASB Statement N o- 54, Fund
Balance Repofting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions (GASB No. 54), which modified
the interpretations of certain terms within the definition of the special revenue funds and the
types of activities the Municipality may choose to report in those funds. GASB No. 54 also
clarified the capital projects fund type definition for better alignment with the needs of
preparers and users. Definitions of other governmental fund types were also modified for
clarity and consistency.

The following is a summary of the significant accounting policies of the lVunicipality:

A. Component Units

ln evaluating how to define the l\4unicipality for financial reporting purposes, management
has considered all potential component units. The decision to include a p;tential
component unit in the reporting entity was made by applying the provisions of Statement
No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity, of the GASB, as amended by the GASB Statement
No. 39, "Determining Whether Certain Organizations Are Component Units. The basic, but
not the only criterion for including a potential component unit within the reporting entity is if
elected officials of a primary government are financially accountable for the entity.
Financial accountability exists if the primary governmental appoints a voting majority of the
entity's governing body, and if either one of the following conditions exist: the primary
government can impose its will on the other entity or the potential exists for the other entity
to (1) provide specific financial benefits to or (2) impose specific financial burdens on the
primary government. A second criterjon used in evaluating potential component units is if
the nature and signiflcance of the relationship between the entity and a primary
government are such that to exclude the entity from the financiat reporting entity would
render the financial statements misleading or incomplete. Based on the above criteria the
lMunicipality does not have component units to include within its reporting entity.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
AUTONOMOUS MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO

NOTES TO BASTC FtNANC|AL STATEMENTS _ (CONflNUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

1. ORGANTZATTON AND SUMMARY OF StcNtFtCANT ACCOUNTTNG pOLtCtES (CONTTNUED)

B. Government-wide and fund financial statements

Financial information of the N4unicipality is presented in this report as follow:

1. lManagement's discussion and analysis introduces the basic financial statements and
provides an analltical overvlew of the lvlunicipality's financial activities.

2. The government-wide financial statements (i.e. the statement of net assets and the
statement of activities) report information on all the activities of the Municipality and its
component units, if any. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes
and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-typed activities,
if any, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. lnterfund
activity has been removed from these statements to minimize the duplicating effect on
assets and liabilities within the governmental activities.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a
given function or segment iS offset by program revenue. Direct expenses are those that
are charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or direcfly benefit from
goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and grants and
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital require;ents of a
particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among
program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

3. Fund financial statements focus on information about the l\4unicipality,s major
governmental funds. lMajor individual governmental funds are reported as separate
columns in the fund financial statements. pursuant to the provisions set forth byGASB
No. 54, the Municipality reported the following governmental funds in the accompanying
GFFS:

General Fund - is the Municipality main operating fund used to account for and report
all financial and reported resources and governmental activities, except for those
required to be accounted for in another fund. lt is presumed that the N4unicipality,s
governmental activities have been reported in the general fund except for transactions
for which one of the following compelling reasons has required the use of another fund:
(1) legal requirements, (2) USGMP requirements or (3) the demands of sound financial
administration requiring the use of a governmental fund other than the general fund. lts
revenues consist mainly of taxes, licenses and permits, intergovernmental, charges for
services and other.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
AUTONOMOUS MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDEDJUNE 30,2011

1. ORGANTZATTON AND SUMMARY OF StcNtFtcANT ACCOUNTTNG pOLtCtES (CONTTNUED)

Speciat Reyenue Fund-Head Start - is a major governmental fund used to account for
and report the proceeds of revenues from Head Start, Early Head Start and Child and
Adult Care Food program grants. The uses and limitations of this special revenue fund
are specified by federal and local statutes. The objective of the Head Start program is to
promote the school readiness of low-income pre school children (ages 3 to 5).

Capital Prcjecb Funds-State and locat ganb - is a major governmental fund used to
account for and report financial resources that are restricted or committed to
expenditure for capital ouflays, including the acquisition or construction of major capital
facilities, including those ou ays financed by the general obligation bond proceeds (other
than those financed by proprietary funds or in trust funds for individuals, private
organizations, or other governments), The use of the capital projects funds has been
limited to major capital acquisitions, construction or improvement activities that would
distort financial resources trend data if not reported separately from the other
lVunicipality's operating activities. The routine purchases of minor capitalizable assets
(such as furniture, office equipment, vehicles and other minor capital assets or
improvements) have been reported in the governmental fund from which financial
resources were used for the payment.

Capltal Projects Funds.Federal grunt - is a major governmental fund used to account for
and report financial resources that are restricted to expenditure for capital oulays,
including the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities. The use of the capital
projects funds has been limited to major capital acquisitions, construction or
improvement activities that would distort financial resources trend data if not reported
separately from the other l\4unicipality's operating activities.

Debt Seruice Fund -is a major governmental fund used to account for and report for the
accumulation of financial resources that are restricted for, and the payment of, principal
and interest for: (1) bonds payable for which debt service payments are legally mandated
to be accounted for in a debt service fund and (2) certain special long-term obligations
for which the [4unicipality is been accumulating financial resources in advance to pay
principal and interest payments maturing in future years.

4. Proprietary Fund Types focus on report any activities for which a fee is charged to
external users for goods or services. The Nlunicipality reports the following propiietary
fund:
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
AUTONOMOUS MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO

NOTES TO BASTC FtNANC|AT STATEMENTS _ (CONTTNUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

1. ORGANTZATTON AND SUMMARY OF StcNtFtcANT ACCOUNTTNG pOLtCtES (CONTTNUED)

Enterprlse Fund - The Enterprise Fund, which was established in June 1996, is used to
account for operations (1) that are financed and operated in a similar manner as private
business enterprises where the intent of the governing body is that the costs ( expenses,
including depreciation) of providlng goods and services to the general public on a
continuing basis, are financed or recovered primary through uses, charges; or (2) where
the governing body has decided that periodic determination of revenues earned,
expenses incurred, andlor net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public
policy, management control, accountability, or other purposes.

The enterprise fund of the Municipality includes land and buildings known as
"Commercial Pavilion Rafael Hern6ndez Col6n, located in 349 M6ndez tigo Street at
Dorado, Puerto Rico. The main source of income comes from rent received from spaces
rented with formal contracts.

5. The notes to the financial statements provide information that is essential to a user,s
understanding of the basic financial statements.

6. Required supplementary information such as the budgetary comparison schedule-
general fund and other types of data required by GASB.

7. Notes to the budgetary comparison schedule-general fund.

C. Financial reporting presentation

The accounts of the Municipality are organized on the basis of funds, each if which is
considered a separate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for
with a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund
equity, revenues, and expenditures.

The N,lunicipality has established the following fund categories, fund types, account groups
and discreet presentation of enterprise fund:

Governmental Fund Types:

Genetal Fund- General Fund is the general operating fund of the Municipality. lt is used to
account for all governmental activity, except those required to be accounted for in another
fund.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
AUTONOMOUS MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

1. ORGANTZATTON AND SUMMARY OF StcNtFtcANT ACCOUNTTNG pOLtCtES (CONTTNUED)

Special Revenue Fund - Local ard State Grants _ Special Revenue Funds are used to
account for revenues derived from local funds, state grants or other restricted revenue
sources. The uses and limitations of each special revenue fund are specified by
Municipality ordinances or state statutes.

speclal Revenue Fund - section 8 - speciar Revenue Funds are used to account for
revenues derived from section 8 choice voucher program. The uses and limitations of each
special revenue fund are specified by lMunicipality ordinances or federal and state statutes.

Special Revenue Fund - Head Sta,t - ls the accounting entity in which revenues derived
from the federal agency are used to provide comprehensive health, educational, nutritional,
social, and other developmental services primarily to economically disadvantaged
preschool children (ages 3 to 5) and infants and toddter (birth through age 3) so that ihe
children will attain school readiness.

Special Revenue Fund - Other Federal Grants - Special Revenue Funds are used to
account for revenues derived from federal grants. The uses and limitations of each special
revenue fund are specified by lvlunicipality ordinances or federal and state statutes.

Capital Projects Furds - State and Locat Gra,ts - Capital project Funds are used to
account for financial resources used for the acquisltion or construction of major capital
facilities.

Capital Projects Funds - Federal Grunts -
financial resources used for the acquisition

Debt Service Furds- Debt Service Funds
resources for and the payment of, general
costs.

Capital Project Funds are used to account for
or construction of major capital facilities.

are used to account for the accumulation of
long-term debt principal, interest, and related

Proprietarv Fund Tvpes

Enterprise Fund - fhe enterprise fund statements consist of Statement of Net Assets,
Statement of Activities, and Statement of Cash Flows. This fund accounts for exchange like
transactions, like private enterprise and its operations are intended to be self supp;rting
through charges to users. These statements are prepared using the economic resourcea
measurement focus, which concentrates on an entity or fund,s net assets.

All transactions and events that affect the total economic resources (net assets) during the
period are reported. The statements are reported on the full accrual basis of accounling.
Revenues are recognized in the period earned and expenses recognized in the period in
which the associated liability is incurred.
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COMMONWEATTH OF PUERTO RICO
AUTONOMOUS MUNICIPALIW OF DORADO

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

1. ORGANTZATTON AND SUMMARY OF SrcNtFtcANT ACCOUNTTNG pOLtCtES (CONTTNUED)

D, Measurement focus, basis of accounting and financial presentation

Govetnment-wide financial statements - The accompanying GWFS are prepared using the
economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Subje;t to
the additional rules and limitations detailed below, revenues (including interesion d;posits
and investments) are generally recorded when earned and expenses are generally recorded
when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.

All revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets and liabilities resulting from exchange-like
transactions are generally recorded when exchange takes place. ln exchange transactions,
each party to the transaction receives and gives up essentally equal values. An exchange
like transaction is one when there is an identifiable exchangi and the values exchanged,
though related, may not be quite equal. The accompanying basjc financial statem;nts
include exchange-like transactions such as license fees, fines, penalties, forfeitures,
permits, charges for services, and most miscellaneous revenues, which are recorded as
revenues when cofiected because they are generaly not measurabre until actua y received.

The N4unicipaljty groups its non-exchange transactions into the following four (4) classes in
the accompanying basic financial statements: (a) derived tax revenues, (b) imposed non_
exchange revenues, (c) government mandated non,exchange transactions, and (d)
voluntary non€xchange transactions.

ln the case of derived tax revenue transactions, which result from assessments that the
Municipality places on exchange transactions, receivabres and revenues are recorded when
the underlying exchange has occurred.

ln the case of imposed non-exchange revenue transactions (such as propefty taxes and
municipal license taxes), which result from assessments made bythe lMunicipality on non_
governmental entities, including individuals, other than assessments on exchange
transaction, receivables are generally recorded in the period when an enforceable legil
claim has arisen. property taxes and municipal license taxes are generally recorded is
revenues (net of amounts considered not collectible) in the fiscal year when resources are
required to be used for the first fiscal year that the use of the resources is permitted.

For government-mandated non-exchange transactions (such as intergovernmental grants
and contributions), receivabres and revenues are generaly recorded when aI eriaibirity
requirements, that are imposed by the provider, have been met. For the majority of g;nts,
the lMunicipality must expend resources on the specific purpose or project before the
provider reimburses any amounts. Therefore, revenue is generally recognized as qualifying
reimbursable expenditures are incurred.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
AUTONOMOUS MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

1. ORGANTZATTON AND SUMMARY OF StGNtF|CANT ACCOUNTTNG pOLtCtES (CONTTNUED)

For. voluntary non-exchange transactions (such as donations and certain grants and
entitlements) receivables and revenues are generally accounted for in the samehanner as
government-mandated non-exchange transactions discussed above.

Events that are neither exchange nor non-exchange transactions are recorded when it is
probable that a loss has been occurred and the amount of loss is reasonably estimated.

lnterests on deposits are recorded when earned since these revenues are considered both
measurable and available at June 30, 2011. Receipts of any type of revenue sources
collected in advance for use in the following fiscal year are recorded as deferred revenues.

According to cASB No. 34, all general capital assets and the unmatured long_term liabilities
are recorded only in the accompanying Statement of Net Assets. The measurement focus
and the basis of accounting used in the accompanying GWFS differ significanfly from the
measurement focus used in the preparation of the GFFS. Therefore, the accompanying
GFFS include reconciliations, as detailed in the accompanying table of contents, to b;tte;
identify the relationship between the GWFS and the cFFS.

Government Fund Financial Statements - The accompanying GFFS are reported using the
current financial resources measurements focus and the modified accrual basis of
accounting. Revenues are generally recognized as soon as they are both measurable and
available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the
current fiscal year or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current fiscal year. For
this purpose, the lVunicipality generally considers most revenues (municipal licenses taxes,
construction excise taxes, sales and use taxes, interests on deposits, intergovernmental
grants and contributions and certain charges for services) to be available if collected within
sixty (60) days after June 30, 2011. At June 30, 2011, all revenues sources met this
availability criterion.

Property taxes are all considered susceptible to accrual
(60) days following the end of the fiscal period, unless
greater period.

if commonly collected within sixty
unusual circumstances justify a

Other revenue sources considered susceptible to accrual include municipal license taxes,
sales and use taxes, construction excise taxes, intergovernmental grants and contributions,
interests on deposits and charges for services. These principal revinue sources meet both
measurability and availability criteria in the accompanying cFFS.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
AUTONOMOUS MUNICIPALIW OF DORADO

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

1. ORGANTZATTON AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

ln a manner similar to the GWFS, but subject to and limited by the availability criteria
discussed above, all revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets and liabilities resulting from
exchange, exchange-like transactions are also generally recorded when the exchange takes
place while all revenues, expenses, gains, losses, and assets resulting from non-exchange

transactions are recorded when an enforceable legal claim arises or when all eligibility
requirements imposed by the provider have been met, applicable.

lnterests on deposits are recorded when earned since these revenues are considered both
measurable and available at June 30, 2011.

Pursuant to the provisions of GASB lnterpretation No. 6, Recognition and Measurement of
Ceftain Liabilities and Expenditures in Governmental Fund Financial Statements (GASBI

No. 6), in the absence of an explicit requirement (i.e., the absence of an applicable
modification, discussed below) the lvunicipality generally accrues a governmental fund
liability and expenditure (including salaries, professional services, supplies, utilities, etc.) in

the period in which the government incurs the liability, to the extent that these liabilities are
normally expected to be liquidated in a timely manner and in full with current available
financial resources. The accompanying Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds generally

reflects only assets that will be converted into cash to satisfy current liabilities. Long-term
assets and those assets that will not be converted into cash to satisfy current liabilities are
generally not accounted for in the accompanying Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds. At
the same time, long-term liabilities (generally, those unmatured that will not require the use
of current financial resources to pay them) are not accounted for in the accompanying
Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds.

The measurement focus of the GFFS is on decreases of net financial resources
(expenditures) rather than expenses. lvlost expenditures are measurable and are recorded
when the related governmental fund liability is incurred. Allocation of costs, such as
depreciation and amortization, are recorded in the accompanying Statement of Activities,
but are not recorded in the accompanying GFFS.

E. Assets, liabilities and net assets

1. Cash, cash equivalents, and cash with fiscal agent- The Municipality's cash and cash
equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-term
investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of
acquisition.
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1. ORGANTZATTON AND SUMMARY OF STGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Cash with fiscal agent in the debt service fund represents special additional property tax
collections retained by the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico and restricted for the
payment of the Municipality's debt service, as established by law. Also, cash with fiscal
agent consists of unused proceeds of bonds and notes issued for the acquisition of
equipment and construction of major capital improvements.

Cash with fiscal agent is shown in the Enterprise Fund which is held by the Government
Development Bank and its use is limited to the expenditures associated with
"Commercial Pavilion of Dorado Rafael Hernendez Col6n".

Receivables and payables- Activity between funds that are representative of
lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred
to as either "due tolfrom other funds" (i.e., the current portion of interfund loans) or
"advances tofrom other funds" (i.e., the nonturrent portion of interfund loans). All

other outstanding balances between funds are reported as "due to/from other funds."

Advances between funds, as reported in the fund financial statements, if any, are offset
by a fund balance reserve account in applicable governmental funds to indicate that
they are not available for appropriation and are not expendable available financial
resources.

Receivables are stated net of estimated allowances for uncollectible accounts, which

are determined, based upon past collection experience and current economic
conditions. lntergovernmental receivable in the general fund represents the balance
due from the Municipal Revenue Collection Center (CRIM) resulting from the final
settlement; lntergovernmental receivables in the debt service fund represent the
amounts due from the CRIM resulting from the excess of current year property tax
collections over current year advances. lntergovernmental receivable in the capital
projects fund and in other governmental funds represent amounts owed to the
Municipality for reimbursement of expenditures incurred pursuant to federally funded
programs or state funded programs.

lnventorieg lnventories in the general fund is recorded as expenditure and,

consequently, the inventory is not recorded in the statement of net assets.

Capital assets- Capital assets, which include property, equipment and infrastructure
assets (e.g., roads, bridges, sidewalks and similar items), are reported in the
governmental activities column in the governmental-wide financial statements. The

lMunicipality defines capital asset as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than

$25 and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. Such assets are reported at
historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital

assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation.
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YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

1. ORGANTZATTON AND SUMMARY OF StcNtFtCANT ACCOUNTTNG pOLtCtES (CONTTNUED)

The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or
materially extend assets lives are not capitalized.

lvlajor outlays for capltal assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are
constru cted.

Capital assets of the Municipality are depreciated using the straight-line method over
the following estimated useful lives:

Description UsefutLite Caoitalization threshotd

Buildings and site improvements 40 years $1
lnfrastructure 40 years $1
Works of an 10 years $1
vehictes 5 years $1
Furnitu.e and fixtures 5 years $25
Machinery and equipment 3 to 5 years $25

5. Deferred revenuee ln the GFFS, deferred revenues arises when one of the following
situations occur:

Potential revenue does not meet both the "measurable'and "available' criteria for
revenue recognition in the current period (unavailable revenue). As previously
discussed, available is defined as due (or past due) at June 30, 2011 and collected
within 60 days thereafter to pay obligations due at June 30. ln subsequent periods,
when both criteria are met, the liability for deferred revenue is removed and
revenue is recognized.

The Municipality receives resources before it has a legal claim to them (unearned
revenue). ln subsequent periods, when the revenue recognition criterion is met, the
liability for deferred revenue is removed and revenue is recognized.

b.

6. Long-term obligation$ The liabilities reported in the government-wide financial
statements include to general and special obligation bonds and notes, and other long-
term liabilities, such as vacation, sick leave, litigation, long-term liabilities to other
governmental entities.

ln the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond issuances
cost, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other
financing sources, while bond issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual
debt proceeds received, are reported as expenditures.
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1. ORGANTZATTON AND SUMMARY OF StcNtFtcANT ACCOUNTTNG pOUCtES (CONTTNUED)

7. Compensated absences- Employees accumulate vacation leave at a rate of 2.5 days
per month up to a maximum of 60 days. Unpaid vacation time accumulated is fuily
vested to the employees from the first day of work. All vacation pay it is accrued whe;
incurred in the government wide financial statements.

Employees accumulate sick leave at a rate of 1.S days per month up to a maximum of
90 days. Upon retirement, an employee receives compensation for ailaccumulated and
unpaid sick leave at the current rate, if the employee has at least 10 years of service
with the Municipality. All sick leave pay and salary related benefits are accrued when
incurred in the governmentalwide financial statements when the employee meets such
criteria.

Claims and judgments" The estimated amount of the liability for claims and judgments,
which is due on demand, such as from adjudicated or set ed claims, is recorded in the
general fund when the liability is incurred.

Fund Balances- ln the current year, the lMunicipality adopted the provisions of GASB
Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Repofting and covernmentat Fund Type Definitions
(GASB No. 54), which enhanced the usefulness of fund balance information by
providing clearer fund balance classifjcations that can be more consistenfly applied.
This statement establishes fund balance classifications that comprise a hierarchy upon
the use ofthe resources reported in governmental funds.

Pursuant to the provisions of GASB No. 54, the accompanylng GFFS report fund balance
amounts that are considered restricted, and unassigned, based on the relative strength
of the constrains that control how specific amounts can be spent, as described as
follows:

Restricted - Represent resources that can be spent only for the specific purposes
stipulated by constitutional provisions, external resource providers (externally
imposed by creditors or grantors), or through enabling tegistation (that is, iegistato;
that creates a new revenue source and restricts its use). Effectively, restricti;ns may
be changed or lifted only with the consent of resource providers.

Unassigned - Represent the residual classification for the N4unicipality's general
fund and includes all spendable amounts not contained in the other classifications.
ln other funds, the unassigned classification is used only to report a deficit balance
resulting from overspending for specific purposes for which amounts had been
restricted, committed, or assigned.

8.

q

a.

b.
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1. ORGANTZATTON AND SUMMARY OF StGNtF|CANT ACCOUNTTNG POL|CtES (CONTTNUED)

Negative fund balance amounts are assigned amounts reduced to the amount that
will raise the fund balance to zero. Consequently, negative residual amounts in
restricted, committed and assigned fund balance classifications have been
reclassified to unassigned fund balances.

The lMunicipality reports resources constrained to stabilization as a specified purpose
(restricted or committed fund balance in the general fund) only if: (1) such resources
meet the other criteria for those classifications, as described above and (2) the
circumstances or conditions that signal the need for stabilization are identified in
sufficient detail and are not expected to occur routinely. However, the N4unicipality has
not entered into any stabilization-like arrangements, nor has set aside material financial
resources for emergencies and has not established formal minimum fund balances
amounts as of for the fiscai year ended June 30, 2011.

ln situations when expenditure is made for a purpose for which amounts are available
in multiple fund balance classifications, the l\4unicipality generally spends committed
resources first, and then unrestricted resources. Within unrestricted resources, the
Nlunicipality generally spends committed resources first, followed by assigned
resources, and then unassigned resources.

1O.Net Assets - Restricted net assets have been reported pursuant to the provisions of
GASB Statement No. 46, Net Assets Restricted by EnablinE Legislation (GASB No. 46).
Those net assets consist of net resources restricted by external parties (such as debt
covenants, creditors, grantors, contributions, laws or regulations of other governments,

etc.), or net assets for which constraints are imposed by the constitutional provisions or
enabling legislation.

Enabling legislation consists of legislation that authorizes the Municipality to assess,
lew, charge or otherwise mandate payment of resources (from external resource
providers), Enabling legislation establishes restrictions if it includes a legally
enforceable requirement that those resources be used only for the specific purposes

stipulated in the legislation. A legally enforceable enabling legislation restriction is one

that a party external to the Municipality (such as citizens, public interest groups, or the
judiciary) can compel the lMunicipality to honor. The lMunicipatity periodically

ieevaluites the legal enforceability of an enabting legislation to determine if any of the

resources raised b, the enabling legislation are used for a purpose not specified by the

enabling legislation or ifthe N4unicipality has other cause for consideration'
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1. ORGANTZATTON AND SUMMARY OF StGNtFtcANT ACCOUNTTNG pOLtCtES (CONTTNUED)

The classification of restricted net assets identifies resources that have been received
or earned by the N4unicipality with an explicit understanding between the N4unicipality
and the resource providers that the resources would be u;ed for specific purposes.
Grants, contributions and donations are often given under those kinds of conditions.
Bond indentures also often limit the use of bond proceeds to specific purposes.

lnternally imposed designation of resources, including earmarking, are not reported as
restricted net assets. These designations consist of managemenG plans for the use of
resources, which are subject to change at the discretion of the ft4unicipal Legislature.

ln the government-wide statements, net assets are segregated into three categories:

a. lnvested in capital assets, net ofrelated debt Consjst of capital asset batances net
of accumulated depreciation and outstanding balances of any bonds, notes and
other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisitio;, construction, or
improvement of those assets. This category should not include cash that is
restricted to capital assets acquisition or construction (unspent bond proceeds)
and any unamortized debt issue costs.

b. Restricted net assets: Represent net assets that are subject to restrictions beyond
the lMunicipal's control. These include restrictions that are e)dernally imposed (by
creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws and regulations of other governments) or
restrictions imposed by the law through constitutional provisio;s or enabling
legislation (including enabling legislation passed by the government itself).

c. Unrestricted net assets: Represent net assets that do not meet the definition of net
assets invested in capital assets, net of related debt or restricted. Unrestricted
assets are often designated to indicate that management does not consider them
to be available for general operations, These types of constraints are internal and
management can remove or modify them. Designations are not reported on the
face statement of net assets,
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1. ORGANTZATTON AND SUMMARY OF StcNtFtcANT ACCOUNTTNG pOLtCtES (CONTTNUED)

ll.Accounting for Pension Costs. On July 1, 2007, the Municipality adopted the provisions
of GASBS No. 50, pension Disc/osure, which amended GASBS No.27, Acco;unting for
Penslons by State and Locat Government Employers, by requiring dlsclosure of how the
contractually required contribution rate is determined by governments participating in
multi-employer cost-sharing pension plans.

The Municipality accounts for pension costs from the standpolnt of a participant in a
multi€mployer cost-sharing plan. Accordingly, pension costs recognized in the
accompanying basic financial statements are equal to the statutorily required
contributions, with a liability recorded for any unpaid required contributions.

For the purpose of applying the requirements of GASBS No. 27, the state Government
of Puerto Rico is considered to be the sponsor of the Employees, Retirement System of
the Government of Puerto Rico and its lnstrumentalities (ERS) and System 2OOO, a
multi€mployer cost-sharjng define benefit pension plan and a hybrid defined
contribution plan, respectively, in which the employees of the Municipality participate.
The lr.4unicipality is considered a participant, and not a sponsor, of these retirement
systems since the majority of the participants in the aforementioned pension trust
funds are employees of the Government of Puerto Rico and the basic financial
statements of such retirement systems are part of the financial reporting entity of the
Government of Puerto Rico.

COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
AUTONOMOUS MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO

NOTES TO BASTC FtNANC|AL STATEMENTS _ (CONTTNUED)

YEAR ENDEDJUNE 30, 2011

12.lnterfund and intra-entity transactione The lMunicipality has the following types of
transactions among funds:

a. Operating Transfers- Legally required transfers that are reported when incurred as
"Operating transferin" by the recipient fund and as "Operating transfers-out" by the
disbursing fund.

b. lntra-Entity Transactions- Transfers between the funds of the primary government
are reported as interfund transfers with receivables and payables presented as
amounts due to and due from other funds.
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1. ORGANTZATTON AND SUMMARY OF StcNtFtCANT ACCOUNTTNG pOLtCtES (CONTTNUED)

13.Risk financing- The l\4unicipality carries commercial insurance to cover casualty, theft,
tort claims and other losses. lnsurance policies are negotiated by the pueio Rico
Treasury Department and costs are allocated among all the lvunicipalities of puerto
Rico. Cost of insurance a ocated to the N4unicipality and deducted from the gross
property tax collections by the CRllVl for the year ended June 30, 2011 amount;d to
$345,384. The current insurance policies have not been cancelled orterminated.

The Municipality carries insurance coverage for death and bodily injuries caused by the
automobile accidents. The insurance is obtained through the Automobile Accidents
Compensation Administration (AACA), a component unit of the Commonwealth of puerto
Rico. This insurance is compulsory for all licensed vehicles used on public roads and
highways in Puerto Rico. The annual premium is $35 per licensed motor vehicle, which
is paid direcfly to MCA.

The N4unicipality obtains workers' compensation insurance through the State lnsurance
Fund Corporation (SIFC), a component unit of the Commonwealth of puerto Rico. This
insurance covers workers against injuries, disability or death because of work or
employment-related accidents, or because of illness suffered as a consequence of their
employment. Cost of insurance allocated to the lMunicipality and deducted from the
gross property tax collections by the Nlunicipal Revenue Collection Center (CRllvl) for the
year ended June 30, 2011 amounted to $450,464.

The lVunicipality obtains unemployment compensation, non occupational disability, and
drivers' insurance coverage for its employees through various insurance programs
administered by the Commonwealth of puerto Rico's Department of Labor and Human
Resources (DOL). These insurance programs cover workers against unemployment and
provide supplementary insurance coverage for temporary disability, or death because
work or employment-related accidents or non occupational disability and drivers,
insurance premiums are paid directly to DOL on a cost reimbursement basis.

Under Act No. 63 of June 27,2O7O, the Legislative Assembly of the Commonwealth of
Puerto Rico, authorized the municipalities to procure and manage at their own
discretion all insurance policies, including those related to health plans been provided
to the municipal employees. The Municipality also obtains medical insurance coverage
from one health insurance company for its employees. Different health coverage and
premium options are negotiated each year by the Municipality. premiums are paid on a
monthly basis directly to the insurance company.
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1. ORGANTZATTON AND SUMMARY OF StcNtF|CANT ACCOUNTTNG pOLtCtES (CONTTNUED)

14.Use of Estimates The preparation of financial statements in conformity with USGMP
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities
at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reported period. Actual amounts could differ from those estimates.

2. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The Municipality maintains its deposits in various commercial banks located in puerto Rico
and Government Development Bank for Puerto Rico (GDB). proceeds from bonds and funds
related to certain grant awards are required by law to be held with GDB.

The lvlunicipality adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No. 40 (GASB No. 4O), Depos,t
and lnvestment Risk Disc/osure, an Amendment to GASB Statement No. 3. This statement
requires that state and local governments disclose essential risk information about deposits
and investments. The disclosure requirements cover four main areas: (1) credit risk, (2)
interest rate risk, (3) custodial credit risk, (4)foreign exchange exposure.

credit risk - This is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill
its obligations. ln compliance with the laws and regulations of the Commonwealth, the
Munjcipality has adopted, as it's custodial and credit risk policy, the Statement of lnvestment
Guidelines for the Government of the Commonweatth of puefto R,co. Accordingly the
lMunicipality lnvests only in obligations of the Commonwealth, obligations of the United States
of America, certificates of deposits, commercial paper, bankers, acceptances, or in pools of
obligations of the municipalities of puerto Rico, which are managed by GDB. According to the
aforementioned investment guidelines, the lvlunicipality does not invest in marketable
securities or any types of investments for which credit risk exposure may be significant.
Therefore, the Municipality's management has concluded that the risk related to any possible
loss related to defaults by commercial banks on the l\4unicipality,s deposits is considered low
at June 30, 2011.

lnterest rate risk - This is the risk that changes in interest rates of debt investments will
adversely affect the fair value of an investment. The l\4unicipality manages its exposure to
declines in fair values by: (1) not including debt investments in its investment portFolio at June
30, 2011, (2) limiting the weighted average maturity of jts investments to three months or
less, and (3) keeping most of its bank deposits in interests bearing accounts generating
interests at prevailing market rates. At June 30,2OI]., the N4unicipality's investments i;
certificates of deposits are recorded at cost, which approximates their fair value. Therefore,
the Municipality's management has concluded that at June 30, 2011, the interest rate risk
associated with the Municipality's cash and cash equivalents is considered low.
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2. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (CONTINUED)

Custodial credit risk - ln the case of deposits, this is the risk that in the event of a bank
failure, the Municipality's deposits may not be recovered, pursuant to the Statement of
lnvestment Guidelines for the Government of the Commonwealth of puerto Rico the balances
deposited in commercial banks by the N4unicipality are insured by the Federal Deposit
lnsurance Corporation (FDIC) generally up to a maximum of $25O,OOO per depositor.

ln addition, public funds deposited in commercial banks by the Municipality are fully securities
pledged as collateral are held, in the lvlunicipality's name, by the agents of the
Commonwealth's Secretary of Treasury. Deposits with GDB are uninsured and
uncollateralized. However, no losses related to defaults by GDB on deposit transactions have
been incurred by the N4unicipality through June 30,2OIf. Therefore, the Municipality's
management has concluded that at June 30, 2011 the custodial credit risk associated with
the Municipality's cash and cash equivalents is considered low.

Foreign exchange risk - The risk that changes in exchange rates will adversely affect the
value of an investment or a deposit. According to the aforementioned investment guidelines,
the lvunicipality is prevented from investing in foreign securities or any other types of
investments in which foreign exchange risk exposure may be significant. Accordingly,
management has concluded that the foreign exchange risk related to the lMunicipality,s
deposits is considered low at June 30, 2011.

Under Commonwealth of Puerto Rico statutes public funds deposited in commercial banks
must be fully collateralized for the amount deposited ln excess of federal depository
insurance. All securities pledged as collateral are held by the Secretary of the Treasury of
Puerto Rico. ln addition, the lMunicipality maintains deposits with the Government
Development Bank for Puerto Rico (GDB).

Deposits - The Municipality's bank balances in commercial banks of $229,508, $L,SOO,L42,
and $4,562,877, in the head start, capital projects fund local and state grants, and capital
projects fund - federal grants, respectively, were fully collateralized at June 30, 2011. ln the
other governmental funds there were deposits with commercial banks of $1,408,241 that
were f ully collateralized.

The deposits at cDB of $15,956,805 that is restricted principally for capitat projects in the
capital project fund - local and state grant, $26,148 restricted for operational expenditures in
the general fund and the $6,055,400 in the debt service fund are unsecured and
uncollateralized, as no collateral is required to be carried by governmental banks.
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3. RECEIVABLES

A. Municipal llcense tax- The lMunicipallty imposes a municipal licensetaxonall businesses
that operate within the lMunicipality, which are not totally or partially exempt from the tax
pursuant to the lndustrial lncentives Acts of the Commonwealth of puerto Rico. This is a
self-assessed tax based on the business volume in gross sales as shown in the tax return
that is due on April 24 of each year.

Entities with sales volume of $1,000,000 or more must include audited financial
statements together with the tax return. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, the
tax rates were as follows:

1. Financial buslness- 1.507o of gross revenues

2. Other organizations- 0.5O7o of gross revenues

This tax is due in two equal installments on July l and January 1of each fiscal year. A
discount of 57o is allowed when full payment is made on or before April 15. lvlunicipal
license tax receivable of $51,791 represents filed municipal license tax returns that were
uncollected as of June 30,2017, net of allowance for uncollectible accounts.

Municipal license taxes collected prior to June 30 but pertaining to the next fiscal year are
recorded as deferred revenues.

B. lntere;overnmenta, Receivabres - lntergovernmental receivable in
represents property tax receivable at June 30, 2011. Following
intergovernmental receivable:

GovernmentalEntitv

Municipal Revenue Coltection Center fCRtL4")

Total

C. Fedetal EEants receivable* Federal Grant receivable in Head Start
expenditures incurred not yet reimbursed by federal government or
grantor. Following is a detail ofthe intergovernmental receivable:

Program Descrlotion

Early Head Start Program

Total

debt service fund
is a detail of the

Amount

$65.521

$65521

fund represents
the pass-through

Amount

$ 43.217

$a3,2n
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3. RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

D, Federal gtants receivables- Federal crant receivable in other governmental funds
represents expenditures incurred not yet reimbursed by federal government or the pass_
through grantor. Following is a detail ofthe intergovernmental recelvable:

ProElam Description

Hazard Mitigation Program
Commun jry Services Block crant
Community Development Block Grants/ State s Program
Emergency Management Performance Grant Homeland Security
Others

Total

Amount

$ 2a,oo0
37,644
23,168
36,375
11.069

$130256

E, Other Receivable Other receivable of $30,974 in the general fund represents accounts
receivable at June 30, 2011, related to construction excise tax $12,784, fines $2,705 and
rent of $15,485.

4. INTERFUNDTRANSACTIONS

lnterfund receivables and payables at June 30, 2011, and interfund transfers duringthe fiscal
year ended at June 30, 2011, are summarized as follows:

a, Due fromlto other tund:

Receivable Fund Pavable Fund

Other Governmenta I

Federal Programs

Puroose

Payroll and related accruals
paid and not reimbursed

Reimbursable expenditures

Reimbursable expenditures

Reimbursable expenditures

Matching Contribution

General Fund

GeneralFund

GeneralFund

General Fund

Other Governmental

Total

Amount

$ 813,364

161,000

450,327

35,507

2.000

$lJr6z192

Head Start Program Fund

Capital Projects Fund State
& Local Funds

Capital Projects Fund'
FederalGrants

GeneralFund
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4. INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

b. Transfer inlout to other tund

Transfer out

GeneralFund

GeneralFund

GeneralFund

Others Governmental
Funds

Capital Projects Fund
FederalGrants

Head Start Program
Fund

Other Govern mental
Funds

Other Governmental
Funds

Oth er Governmenta I

Funds

Capital Projects Fund-
FederalGrants

Total

Transfer in

Head Start Program Fund

Other Governmental Fund

Debt Service Fund

Others Governmental Funds

Others Governmental Funds

GeneralFund

Capital Poects Fund - State
and LocalGrants

Head Start Program Fund

Capital Projects Fund, Federal
Grants

Debt Service

Puroose

Matching Cont bution

lvatching contribution

Debt retirement

Transfer of funds for special
purpose

Transfer of funds for special
purpose

Expenditure reclassif ication
to the correctfund

Transfer of funds for special
purpose

Expenditure reclassif ication
to the correctfund

Transfer of funds for special
purpose

0ebt Retirement

Amount

$ 378,000

s66,996

63,637

2,709

4,470

7,944

13,616

232

457,77a

554.699

$ r,a49a14
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YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

5. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital assets; those with an estimated useful live of one year or more from the time of
acquisition by the Nlunicipality and a cost of $25 or more, are primarily funded through the
issuance of long-term bonds and loans. A summary of capital assets and changes occurring
in 2011, including those changes pursuant to the implementation of GASB Statement No_ 34,
follows. Land and construction in progress are not subject to depreciation:

Governmental Activlties:

capital asset, not being depreciated:

Construction in progress

Total capltal assets not being
depreciated

Capital assets, belng depr€ciated:

Buildings
Buildings improvements
lnfrastructu re
lnfrastructure improvements
Equipment
Furnishing

Computers

Total capital assets belng depreciated

Less acrumulated depreciation for:

Buildings
Buildings improvements

lnf rastucture improvements
Equipment
Furnishing
Computers

Total accumulated depreciation

Total capltal assets being depreclated,

Govemmental activities capital assets,

Balance
.,une30.2O1O

$ 65,725,630
16.654.385

82.340.O15

13,673,764
47,571,OO7
70,644,776
4,725,763
3,715,O14

46a,a3A
302,725
506.719

7 _OOO.aO2

52.604.202

(6,097,680)
(889,987)

(3,288,965)
/326,467)

(2,959,894)
(363,361)
(425,534)
(59,566)

(6.394.691)

127.306.745\

31.302.057

$ 113.682,012

Additions

$ 139,100
5.701.031

5.840.131

20,850
1,541,906
I,OO7,373

492,aa7
69,115
9,682
4,800

26,352
352.608

3.525.513

G42,aos)
i326,555)
(2O8,378)
(344,0O5)

1277,322)
(40,250)
(52,916)
(29,492)

t324_a921

(1.945.915)

1.579.598

$ 1A19.1A

Retirements

$
(2.160.597\

12.160.597)

(15,682)
(2,O34)-

(14,898)
(302.9611

{335.575)

14,475
4,432

74-,857

302.727

334.285

(L.29Ol

L (2,161382)

Balance
June30.2011

$ 65,864,730
20.794.479

86.O59.549

13,634,614
13,712,907
11,651,489
5,2f,650
3,16a,447

476,486
306,925
518,173

7.050.449

55.798.140

(6,439,785)
(1,276,542)
\3,497,343],
.7,77O,472)
.3,222,34t)

{401,779)
(463,s93)
(89,058)

(6.416.a62)

122.917 .7 75)

32.480.365

$ !18-939914
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YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

_ s. CAP|TAL ASSEIS (CONTTNUED)

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the Nlunicipality as follows:

Governmental activities:

Genera I government $ 557,543
Public safety 7LA.447
Public works 660.775
Health and welfare 14,50b
Education 3,980
Economic development 91,145
Culture and recreation 269.135
Community development 229.7A5

Total depreciatlon expenscglovern mentat activities S_L9![iL915

Balance Balance
Buslness - tvpe activitles June 30.2010 Addltlons Retirements June 30.2011
Capital asset, not being
deprecialed:

Land and construction in progress $ 388.790 $ - $ $ 388.790
Total capital assets not belne
depreclated

Capital assets, beinEl depreciated:

Building

: 388.790

Building improvements 45,400 - 45.400

388.790

3,537,458 3,537,458

Total capital assets being
depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation Ior:

Building

3.582.a58

t 1.236.475) (89.572)

: 3.582.8s8

r ( 1.325.9a7)

Total accumulated depreciation 1.236.475], i€9.572\ : (7.325.987\

Total capital assets being
depreciated, net

Business - type Activities capltal
assets. net

2.346.443 {89.572\ : 2.256.471

$ 2,735,233 $ 189,572) $- . $ 2,645,661

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the Municipality as follows:

Buslness -type Activitles
Generalgovernment $ 89.572

Total deprecjation expense{overnmentat acttvtties L89,522
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YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

- 6. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES

- Accounts payable, bank overdraft, and accrued liabilities at June 30, 2011 are summarized as
_ follows:

capirar Prciects capirat prcjecrs other
Head $an Fund - State & Fund - Fede6t Debt Seei@ Govemmentat

- De*riotion ceneral Fund fund Leat cranrs q!a!G Ilrl Elnd Totat

Accounlspayable$ 512,293 $ 4A,225$ 179,913 $ $ $ 73,A30 $ a74.261

Bankoverdralr 3,016,193

Afttued riabilniE 790.622

3,016,193

190.622

rorar $ lJz9ja8 L 48225 s 1793f3 L 73.830 $ 4.081.076

7. DUE TO OTHER GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES:

The amounts due to other governmental entities in the General Fund include the following:

Governmental Entltv An09!I!
Puerto Rico Aqueduct and SewerAuthority $ 125,667
Generalservices Admjnistration 1.650

Total $ 127.317

8. DEFERRED REVENUES

_ A. Municipal License Tax- The deferred revenues of $2,441,728 in the general fund relates
to municipal license tax collected in fiscal year 2010-11 that will be earned in fiscal year
20L7-72.

B. Federal covernment- The deferred revenues presented in Head Start program Fund
represent the portion of federal grants received for which qualifying expenditures have not
been incurred. Deferred revenues from the federal government are as follows:

ProEram Descriotior Amounl

- Head Stan Program ARRA $ 10- Head Start Program 50.a54
Child and Adult Care Food Program 12.636
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YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

8. DEFERRED REVENUES (CONTINUED)

The deferred revenues presented in other governmental funds represent the portion of
federal grants received for whjch qualifying expenditures have not been incurred.
Deferred revenues from the federal government are as follows:

ProEram Descriotion

Housing Opponunities for Persons with AIDS
Repayment Section 1O8 Loan
Emergency lManagement Performance Grant
Special Program forAgingTitle lll
Homelessness Prevention and Rapid RrHousing-ARRA
Emergency Shelter Grant
Department EnerS/ Germantown ASAP
Other Programs

Total

Amount

$ 12,001
45,997
42,064
55,604
23,642
20,000

447,676
40.134

$ 38L-L22

9. PROPERTYTAXES

The personal property tax is self assessed by the taxpayer on a return which is to be filed by
May 15 of each year with the CR|N,4, a governmental entity created by the government of
Puerto Rico as part of the Municipal covernmental Autonomous Law of August 1991. Real
property tax is assessed by the CRll\4 on each piece of real estate and on each building.

The assessment is made as of January 1 of each year and is based on current values for
personal property and on estimated values as of 1957 for real property tax. The tax on
personal property must be paid in full together with the return by N4ay 15. The tax on real
property may be paid in two installments byJuly l and January 1. The CRIIV is responsible for
the billing and collections of real and personal property taxes on behalf of all the
municipalities of Puerto Rico. Prior to the beginning of each fiscal year, the CRIN4 informs the
Municipality of the estimated amount of property tax expected to be collect for the ensuing
fiscal year. Throughout the year, the CRll\4 advances funds to the lvlunicipality based on the
initial estimated collections, as modified by the quarterly revisions of estimates required law.
The CRIM is required by law to prepare a liquidation statement on a fiscal year basis, whereby
a comparison is made between the amounts advanced to the N4unicipality and amounts
actually collected from taxpayers. Thls preliminary liquidation has to be completed on a
preliminary basis not later than three months after fiscal year-end, and a final liquidation
made not later than six months after year end, subject to the verification by its lndependent
Auditors. lf the CRINI remits to the Municipality property tax advances, which are less than the
tax actually collected, a receivable from the CRllvl is recorded at June 30. However, if
advances exceed the amount actually collected by the CRIM, a payable to the CRIIM is
recorded at June 30. At the date of this report, the Final Liquidation has not been issued by
the CRIM.
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9. PROPERTY TAXES (CONTINUED)

On January 26, 2000, Public Law No. 42 was enacted which authorized the CRIN4 to obtain a
loan up to $200,000,000, and for a term not to exceeding 10 years, to allow for the financing
of the debt that the N4unicipalities of Puerto Rico have with the CRIIM arising from final
settlements of property tax advances versus actual collections through fiscal year ended June
30, 2000. The amounts that the lvunicipalities will collect from additional property taxes
resulting from increases in the subsidy from the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico to the
N4unicipalities are assigned through this law to repay such loan. The increase in this subsidy
was the result of the Public Law No. 238, enacted on August 15, 1999. On October 11, 2001,
Public Law No. 146 was enacted to amend Public Law No.42, to extend the loan amortization
period up to 30 years.

Also, on October !7,2OO2, Public Law No. 172 was enacted, to provide as an option for the
Municipalities to include the debt that the Municipalities of Puerto Rico have with the CRIM
arising from final settlements of property tax advances versus actual collections for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2001 with the loan authorized through Public Law No. 42 enacted on
January 26, 2000.

On June 26, 1997, Public Law No. 21 was enacted which authorized the CRIM to sell property
tax receivables related to taxpayers who owned property taxes trcm 7974 to 1996. The
property tax receivables were purchased by Public Financing Corporation, a subsidiary of the
Government Development Bank (GDB), with proceeds of a bonds issuance. This Law imposes
to the CRIM the obligation to replace any uncollectible property tax receivable with any valid
property tax receivables or equivalent in money.

A high percentage of receivables were determined to be uncollectible receivables, and
therefore, on October 11, 2001, Public Law No. 146 was enacted which authorized the CRIN4
to obtain a loan to pay in advance the bonds issued by the Public Financing Corporation (a
GDB subsidiary), and any costs related to the transaction. Also, a term not to exceeding 30
years was authorized to the financing of the debt that the Municipalities of Puerto Rico have
with the CRIM arising from the sale of property tax receivables to the Public Financing
Corporation (a GDB Subsidiary).

The government wide statement of net assets includes an outstanding debt balance of
$232,482 and $249,556 related to Law No.42 and Law !46 respectively.
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9. PROPERTY TMES (CONTINUED)

Residential real property occupied by its owner is exempt by law from the payment of property
taxes on the first $ 15,000 of the assessed value. For such exempted amounts, the puerto
Rico Treasury Department assumes payment of the basic tax to the lMunicipalities, except for
property assessed at less than $ 3,500 for whjch no payment is made. As part of the
lMunicipal Autonomous Law of 1991, the exempt amount to be paid by the puerto Rico
Treasury department to the Nlunicipalities was frozen as of Jan uary !, !992.

ln addition, the law grants a tax exemption from the payment of personal property taxes of uO
to $ 50,OOO of the assessed value to retailers having annual net sales of less than $
150,000.

The annual tax rate is 8.83% for real property and 6.83% for personal property of which 1.03%
of both tax rates are for the redemption of public debt issued by the Commonwealth of puerto
Rico. The remaining percentage is distributed as follows: (a) 5.8% and 3.80%, respectively,
represents the Municipality's basic property tax rate which is appropriated for basics and
accounted for in the general fund. A portion of such amount is deposited in an equalization
fund together with a percentage of the net revenues of the puerto Rico electronic lottery and a
subsidyfrom the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico. From such fund, a distribution is made to all
municipalities; (b) 2.00% represents the ad valorem tax restricted for debt service and
accounted for in the debt service fund.

lO,MUNICIPAL SALES AND USE TAX

On July 29, 2007, an amendment to Act. No. 117 of July 4, 2006, known as the "Tax Fairness
Act of 2006", was enacted with the purpose of establishing a mandatory sales and use tax of
1.5% at the l\4unicipal level. The Municipalities of Puerto Rico are responsible to collect 1% of
the corresponding tax with the same exemptions and limitations that the portion collected by
the Treasury Department. The Act provides for an optional surtax on the unprocessed food.
This surtax must be approved by the lMunicipal Legislature. The Treasury Department is
responsible to create, the Municipal Development Fund (.02%), the l\4unicipal Redemption
Fund (.O2%), and the lMunicipal lmprovement Fund (.01%) with the remaining O.O5%. The
Municipality collected $1,544,684 during the year ended June 30, 2011. Atso, $537,003
from the l\4unicipal Redemption Fund are included in the Debt Service Fund.
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11.LONG.TERM LIABILITIES

Long-term liability activity for the year ended June 30, 2011, was as follows:

seginning Endlng

Prcpeny Tax Debt taw
146

Property Iax Debt - Law
42

Ll[,lS Repayment Plan
Compensated Absences
Claims and Judgments

Landfill obligation

Total

$36,927,000
9,086,000

267,440

237,560
141,.59L

2,974,919
150,000

195,958
L,574,762

$6,764,000
4ao,o00

$(1,777,000)
(946,000)

(11,884)

(s,078)
(93,003)

t421,L25)

(113,486)
(8,379)

$41,914,000
8,620,000

249,556

232,482
48,5aa

3,046,747
435,000

82,472
1,470343

$2,27a,000
996,000

1!aa4

5,397
48,588

295,OOO
400,000

42,472

492,947
245,000

300,ooo

!!1!!:?lo $8,321,947 !11,3M!!) $56,499,222 $4,117,341

L. Legal debt margin- The lVunicipality is subject to a legal debt margin requjrement, which is
equal to 10% of the total assessment of property located within the Municipality plus
balance of the ad valorem taxes in the debt service fund, for bonds payable to be repaid
with the proceeds of property taxes restricted for debt service. ln addition, before anynew
bonds are issued, the revenues of the debt service fund should be sufficient to cover the
projected debt service requirement. Long-term debt, except for the bonds and notes
payable (excluding notes payable to the Land Authority), is paid with unrestricted funds.

Bonds Payable- The N,'lunicipality issues general and special obligation bonds to provide
funds for the acquisition and construction of major capital facilities. Bonds payable
outstanding at June 30, 2011 are as follows:

2.
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11. LONG-TERM LTABTLTTtES (CONTTNUED)

Descriotion
Balance at

June 30.2011

1995-Public improvement bond for lnfrastructure improvements with an o ginal
amount of $2,750,OO0 due in instattments of 9220,000 to $280,000 through luty 1,
2045 $ 995,000

1997 Special obligation bond for infrastructure improvements with an original amount
of$290,OOO due in installments of $20,000to $25,000through Juty 1,2016 11O,OOO

1997 Special obllgation bond for infrastructure improvements with an originat amount
of $110,000 due in tnsta ments of$5,000 ro $1O,0OO through.Juty 1, 2016 35,OOO

1998 General obligation bond for capital asset jmprovements with an originat amount
of$1,065,000 due in installments of$1O5,OOOto $115,000through Juty 1,2013 22O,OOO

1999 General obligation bond for infrastructure improvements with an original amount
of $3,675,000 due in installments of $335,000 to $390,0OO through Juty 1, 2014 1,085,000

- 
ZOOO General obligation bond for infrastructure improvements with an original amount
of$65,OOO due in installments of $s,Ooothrough )uly 7,20!4 15,OOO

2000 General obligation bond for infrastructure amprovements with an original amount
of $1,500,000 due in installments of$70,000 to 145,000 through July 1,2021 1,025,000

OO1 General obligation bond for infrastructure improvements with an original amount
of$31O,OO0 due in installments of $10,000 to $3O.OOOthrough July 1, 2026 250,000

2002 Generalobligation bond for infrastructure improvements with an original amount
of $2,850,000 due in installments of$80,000 to $250,000 through Juty 1,2027 2.37O,OOO

- 2OO4 General obligation bond for operational expenses with an original amount of
$55O,OOO due in installmenG of $15,000 to $40,000 through July 1, 2029 470,000

2004 General obligation bond for infrastructure improvements with an original amount
of $3,150,000 due in installments of $135,000 to $240,000 through July 1, 2024 2,385,000

2OO4 General obliAatron bond for infrastructure improvements with an oraginal amount
of $ 1 15,OOO due i; installments of $5,OOO to $ 1O,OOO through J u ly 1, 2024 aO,OOO
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11. LONG-TERrvr LtABtL|TIES (CONTTNUED)

Descdotion
Balance at

June 30.2011

2004 General obligation bond for infrastructure improvements wath an originalamount
of $1,860,000 due in installments of$80,000 to $145,000 through July 1,2024 1,405,000

- 2005 General obligation bond for operational expenses-housing rehabjlitation with an
original amount of$5O,OO0 due in installments of $5,OOOthrough July 1,2015 20,OOO

2005 General obliSation bond for infrastructure improvements with an orjganal amount
of $945,000 due in installments of $60,000 to $85,000 through July 1, 2020 650,000

2005 General obligation bond for infrastructure improvements with an original amount
of $5,825,000 due in installments of $360,0001o $535,o0othrough luly 1, 2020 3,990,000

2006 Special obligation bond for property acquisition with an original amount of
$532,000 due in installments of $13,00010 $42,000 through July 1,2030 46a,0oo

- 2007 Special obligation bond for lnfrastructure improvement with an original amount
of $1,645,000 due in installments of $85,000 to $175,000 through.luly 1, 2022 1,360,000

2008 General obligation bond for infrastructure improvements with an originalamount
of$3,650,000 due in installments of $65,000 to $3o5,o0o through July 1,2033 3,480,000

2008 General obligation bond for infrastructure improvements with an original amount* of $220,OO0 due in installments of$2O,OOO to $30,OO0 through luly 1,2018 170,000

2008 General obligation bond for infrastructure improvements with an original amount
of $370,000 due in installments of $5,000 to $35,000 through July 1, 2033 355,oo0

- 2OOg Generalobligation bond for infrastructure improvements with an originalamount

- of $3,265,000 due in installments of$60,000to $270,000 through luly 1, 2033 3,110,OO0

2OO8 Special obligation bond for infrastructure improvements with an original amount
of $3,720,ooo due in installments of$75,0001o $310,000through July 1, 2032 3,595,000

2009 General obligation bond for infrastructure improvements with an original amount
of $3,395,ooo due in installments of $90,000 to $310,000 through July 1, 2029 3,230,000

2OOg Special obligation bond for infrastructure improvements with an original amount
of$93o,o0o due in installments of $25,000 to $85,000through July 1, 2o2a 895,000

2010 General obligation bond for infrastructure improvements with an original amount
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11. LONG-TERM LTABTLTTTES (CONTTNUED)

Descriptlon

2010 General obligation bond for infrastructure improvements with an original amount
of $1,095,000 due in installments of $2O,O0O to $90,000 through July 1, 2035

2010 Special obligation bond for infrastructure improvements with an original amount
of$537,000 due in installments of $30,00010 $62,000through July 1,2022

2011 General obligation bond for infrastructure improvements with an original amount
of $1,900,000 due in installments of$30,000 to $160,000 through July 1,2036

Balance at
June 30.2011

1,080,000

512,000

1,900,oo0

2011 General obligation bond for infrastructure improvements with an original amount
of$3,3O5,OOO due in installments of $60,0001o $290,000 through July 1,2033 3,305,000

2011Special obligation bond for infrastructure improvements with an original amount
of $754,000 due in installments of $130,000 to $174,000 through July 1, 2016

2011 General obligation bond for infrastructure improvements with an original amount
of $805,000 due in installments of $30,0o0 to $85,oo0 through July 1, 2025

Total general obligation bonds

754,000

a05,o00

$ 41,914,000

These bonds, except the 1997 Series bonds for $110,000 and $29O,OOO, and the 2006
Series bonds amounting to $532,000, are payable from the special ad valorem property tax
of 2.00% which is restricted for debt service and retained by the Government Development
Bank for Puerto Rico for such purposes. The 2011 Series bonds amounting to $754,000 is
payable by the self-generated revenues from the "Pabelldn Rafael Hern6ndez" charges for
services. The 2OOB Series bond amounting to $$3,720,000, the 2009 bond for $$930,000,
the 2010 Series bond for $537,000, and the 2011 Series bond amounting $8o5,ooo are
payable with the revenues generated from the collection ot he .2% of the municipal sales
and use taxes Redemption Fund.

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for bonds payable are as follows:

Year Ending
June 30,

2042
20a3
2044
2045
2076
2047-2021
2022-2026
2027 2037
2032-2036
Total Bonds Payable

Princioal

$ 2,27a,OO0
2.424,OOO
2,480,000
2,257,OOO
2,061,000

10,567,000
8,744,000
7,60s,000
3,500,000--tr4 i-ei4"ooo

lnterest

$ 1.656,916
2,379,205
2,246,549
2,727,440
2,O!9,957
4,261,372
5,237,523
2,46s,672

348,700----i %ids7A
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11. LONG-TERM LTABTLTTTES (CONTTNUED)

3. Notes Payable The proceeds of the issuance of notes payables were used principally to
pay debt incurred in prior years and to cover the expenditures of a special event. During
the current year the municipal legislature authorized notes issuances for $480,000 The
notes are payable as follows:

Tvoe of notes

2OO5 Series
2005 Series
2007 Series
2008 Series
2OO8 Series
Section 1O8 Series 20084
2008 Series
2009 Series
2009 Series
2010 Series
2010 Series
20ll Series

Range of Balance at
lnterest rates June 30.2011

4.62% $ 195,OOO
6%to 7% 115.000

7.557%to 6% 24O,OOO
1.551% to 6% 15O.OOO
a.557%to 6% 110,000

5.17.k 5,194,000
1.551%to6% 585,000
4.557%lo 5'/" aO,OOO
5% to 6.50% 1,106,000

4.62'/,to4.73% 305,000
5%lo 7% 60,000

6yalo7.5o% 48O,OOO

lllaturity
Dalc

7-t2042
7 7 2073
7 120t4
7-7-2075
7 7-2073
7-1-2024
7 7 2075
7-!-20!4
7-a-2033
7-a-2017
7 a 20a7
1 7 20aA

Original
Amount

1,190,000
345,000
480,000
230,O00
245,O00

5,500,oo0
925,000
125,000

1,141,OO0
345,OO0

65,000
480,000

Totalootes payable $ 8,620,000

This notes, except the 2009 and 2011 Series are payable from the special ad valorem
property tax of 2.00% which is restricted for debt service and retained by the Government
Development Bank for Puerto Rico for such purposes. The Series 2009, amounting
L,L4!,OOO, and the 2011 Series amounting to $480,000 are payable with the revenues
generated from the collection of lhe .2r/o of the municipal sales and use taxes Redemption
Fund.

Annual debt service requirements to maturity Jor notes payable are as follows:

Year EndinEi
June 30.

2072
2073
20!4
2075
2016
2017 2027
2022-2026
2027-2034
2032 2036
Total

Principal

$ 996,000
436,000
756,000
666,000
47a,OOO

1,925,000
1,765,000

929,000
276,O00

$8,620,ooo

lnterest

$ 331.095
3a6,552
346,983
30a,654
274,707

4,055,7 72
597,437
771,947

28,275
-$ss11J-s6
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11. LONG-TERM LtABtLtTtES (CONTTNUED)

4. LIMS Repayment Plan- During the fiscal year 2OO1-2OO2, the N4uniclpality authorized the
CRINI to retain the corresponding portion for the financing project of Land lnformation
N4anagement System - LIMS, contracted by the CRll\.4. A total of $746,093 is to be
retained in a ten years period at an interest rate of 5.95%, until November 28,2017. Al
June 30, 2011, the outstanding debt balance is $48,588. This amount is presented in the
government-wide financial statements.

5. Compensated absenceg The government-wide statement of net assets includes
$1,897,003 of accrued sick leave benefits, and approximately $1,149,738 of accrued
vacation benefits, representing the l,4unicipality's commitment to fund such costs from
future operations.

6. Claims and Judgments - This amount represents the balance related to legal claims at
June 30, 2011, as described in Note 15.

7. Department of Labor Repayment Plan- This amount relates to an unemployment
insurance debt. The Municipality agrees to repay the total of $435,310 including interests,
by an agreement signed in December, 2005. ln this agreement, the N,lunicipality accepted
the debt for the total of $272,857 and requests a payment plan to liquidate the debt in
210 monthly payments. As ofJune 30, 2011, the debt balance amounted to $82,472.

8. Landfill obligation- State and federal laws and regulations require the Municipality to place
a final cover on its landfill site when closed and perform certain maintenance and
monitoring functions at the landfill site for thirty years after closure. ln accordance with
Statement No. 18 of the GASB, "Accounting for lvunicipal Solid Waste Landfill Closure and
Post Closure Care Costs", the lvunicipality has performed a study of the activities that
need to be implemented at the Municipality's landfill to comply with applicable state and
federal regulations. During June 30, 2004, the Nlunicipality entered in an agreement with
a contractor to complete the final cover of the landfill for a total cost of $873,569 and
additional inspection, monitoring, and supervision costs amounting to $90,079 for a total
cost of $963,648. Amounts paid to contractors, related to closing costs prior to the current
fiscal year totaled $957,886. Dwing 2O7O-2OLI a total of $8,379 were paid to others
suppliers related to closing cost. Based on this, the Municipality has recognized $20,383
as the Municipality's estimated current cost for landfill closure as of June 30, 2011. The
preliminary annual estimate of post closure costs has been adjusted to approximately
$1,850,000 for a period of approximately 25 years. Actual costs may be different due to
inflation, changes in technology, or changes in laws and regulations. AsofJune30,2011,
the Municipality's landfill facilities have been closed. The balance of closure and post-

closure costs of $20,383 and $1,850,000, respectively, are reported in the government-
wide statement of net assets.
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDEDJUNE 30, 2011

12.PENSION PLAN

The Employee's Retirement System of the Commonwealth and its lnstrumentalities (the
Retirement System) is a cost-sharing multiple defined benefit pension plans sponsored by,
and reported as a component unit of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico. All regular employees
of the Municipality under 55 years of age at the date of employment become members of the
Retirement System as a condition to their employment.

The Retirement System provides retirement, death and disability benefits pursuant to
legislation enacted by the Commonwealth's legislature. Disability retirement benefits are
available to members for occupational and non-occupational disabilities. Retirement benefits
depend upon age at retirement and the number of years of creditable service. Benefits vest
after ten years of plan participation.

lvembers who have attained 55 years of age and have completed at least 25 years of
creditable service or members who have attained 58 years of age and have completed ten
years of creditable service are entitled to an annual benefit payable monthly for life.

The amount of the annuity shall be one and one-half percent of the average compensation, as
defined, multiplied by the number of years of creditable service up to twenty years, plus two
percent of the average compensation, as defined, multiplied by the number of years of
creditable service in excess of 20 years. ln no case will the annuity be less than $200 per

month.

Participants who have completed at least 30 years of creditable service are entitled to receive
the Merit Annuity. Participants who have not attained 55 years of age will receive 65 percent

of the average compensation, as defined; otherwise they will receive 75 percent of the
average compensation, as defined. No benefits are payable if the participant receives a
refund of his/her accumulated contributions,

Commonwealth legislation requires employees to contribute 5.775% for the first $55O of their
monthly gross salary and 8.275o/a lor the excess over $ 550 of monthly gross salary. The

N4unicipality is required by the same statute to contribute 9.275% of lhe participant's gross

salary.

On September 24, 1999, an amendment to Act. No. 447 of lMay 15, 1951 (which created the
Retirement System), was enacted with the purpose of establishing a new pension program

(System 2OOO). Employee's participation in the current system as of December 31, 1999'
may elect to stay in the defined benefit plan or transfer to the new program. Personsjoining
the Municipality on or after January 1, 2000, will only be allowed to become members of
System 2OOO. System 2OOO will reduce the retirement age from 65 years to 60 for those
employees whojoined the current plan on or after April 1, 1990.
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

12. PENSTON P|.AN (CONTTNUED)

System 2000 is a hybrid defined contribution plan, also known as a cash balance plan. lJnder
this new plan, there will be a pool of pension assets, which will be invested by ERS together
with those of the current defined benefit plan. The Commonwealth of Puerto Rico will not
guarantee benefits at retirement age. The annuity will be based on a formula which assumes
that each year the employee's contribution (with a minimum of 8.275"/" to the employee's
salary up to a maximum of 10%) will be invested in an account which will either: (1) earn a
fixed rate based on the two-year Constant Maturity Treasury Note or, (2) earn a rate equal to
75o/o of lhe return of the ERS'S investment portfolio (net of management fees), or (3) earn a
combination of both alternatives. Participants will receive periodic account statements similar
to those of defined contribution plans showing their accrued balances. Disability pensions will
not be granted under System 2000. The employer's contribution (9.27 5a/o ot the employee's
salary) will be used to fund the current plan.

lf at the time of retirement accumulated benefits amount to $10,000 or less may elect to
receive a lump sum distribution up to the accumulated benefits. Under the new program the
retirement age is reduced from 65 to 60 for those employees who joined the current plan on
or after April 1, 1990.

FundlnE Policy

The authority under which the funding policy and the obligations to contribute to the ERS and
System 2OOO by the plans' members, employers and other contributing entities (state and
municipal contributions), are established or may be amended by law.

Contribution requirements are established by law and are as foilows:

Municipality
Employees:

9.275% of gross salary

Hired on or before March 31, 1990 5.77570 of gross salary up to$6,6o0
8.275ol" of gross salary over $6,600

Hired on or before April 1, 1990 8.275% of gross salary

Annual Contrlbution

The Nlunicipality contributions during those years are recognized as total pension

expenditures/expenses in the category of administration as follows:
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12.PENS|ON PLAN (CONTTNUED)

- Fiscal vear Law No.447 System 2000

- 20LL $ 369.640 $ 267,730

20LO $ 376,666 $ 257,349

2009 $ 390,603 $ 235,a07

These amounts represented the 10070 of the required contribution for the corresponding year.
Additionally, changes made in the types and amounts of benefits offered by special laws and

- cost of living adjustments, led to a one-tine recommended contribution to fund the retroactive
adjustment related to the changes.

* 
Additional information on the Retirement System is provided in its financial statements for the
year ended June 30, 2011, a copy of which can be obtained from the Retirement System,

_ lvinillas Station, Po Box 42003, Sa n Juan, PR 00940-2003.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
AUTONOMOUS MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

14.RISK MANAGEMENT

The Property Division is responsible of assuring that the lMunicipality's property is properly
insured. Annually, the Property Division compiles the information ofall property owned and its
respective market value. After evaluating this informalion, the Property Division submits the
data regarding the lvlunicipality's properties to the Public lnsurance Department at the
Treasury Department of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico who is responsible for purchasing
all property and casualty insurance policies of all municipalities. Settled claims have not
exceeded commercial coverage in any ofthe past three fiscal years.

15. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

a. Claims and lawsuits:

The Municipality is a defendant in a number of lawsuits arising principally from the ordinary
course of the Municipality's activities.

With respect to pending and threatened litigation, the Municipality has reported liabilities of
$435,000 for awarded or anticipated unfavorable judgments in the Government-Wide
Financial Statements. This amount was included in the financial statements and represents
the amounts estimated as a probable liability or a liability with a fix or expected due date,
which will require future available financial resources for its payments.

It is the management's opinion, based on the advice of the legal counsel, that the potential
claims against the Municipality not covered by insurance will not materially affect the financial
resources for its payment.

b. FederalGrants:

The Municipality participates in a number of federal financial assistance programs funded by
the Federal Government. Expenditures finance by these programs are subject to financial and
compliance audits by the appropriate grantor or grantee. The amount, if any, of expenditures
which may be disallowed by such audits cannot be determined at this time, although the
Municipality management expects such amounts, if any, will not be material.

c. Other Commitments:

At June 30, 2011 the general fund had commitments of approximately $742,000 for
executory purchase orders or contracts that will be honored duringthe subsequent year.
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL SIATEMENTS - (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

16. FUTURE ADOfiION OF ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

The GASB has issued the following statements that have effective dates after June 30, 2011:

a. GASB Statement No. 60, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Service Concession
Arangernents (GASB 60). The requirements of this statement are effective for the fiscal
year commencing on .luly !,2077.

b. GASB Statement No.6I, The Financial Repofting Entity (GASB 61). The requirements of
this statement are effective for the fiscal year commencing after .tune 75,2072.

c. GASB Statement No.62, Codification of Accountingj and Financial Repor-ting Guidance
Contained in Pre-November 30, 7989 FASB and AICPA pronouncements IGASB 62). The
requirements of this statement are effective for the fiscal year commencing on July 1,
2072.

d. GASB Statement No. 63, Flnancial Reportin! Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred
,nflows oi Resources and Net Position. The requirements of this statement are effective
for the fiscal year commencing on December 15, 2011.

e. GASB Statement No. 64, Derivative lnstruments: Application of Hedge Accounting
Termination Provision (amendment to GASB Statement No. 53). The requirements ofthis
statement are effective for the fiscal year commencing on June 15, 2011.

The impact of these statements on the lvunicipality's basic financial statements has not yet
been determined.

17. PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS

A. GOVERN IENTAL FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The following restatements have been made in the governmental fund financial
statements, which are reported as an adjustment to the beginning fund balances:

Capital
speclalRevenue capltalPbjets Proje.ts
Fund -state& Fund - st.le & Fund-Federal

other
oebr seryl@ Govemmental

Fund FundLocalGrants to€lGranrs

Fund balan@, beginning $1,030,421 {$ 202,095) $ 16,616,569 S 4,543,460 $ 4,646,595

To coiiect prd ,€.r delercd

Fund balanc, beginn ng as
$ 603 ??4

927,23A,!74

15.937

921254t111
- 

15937

$1030421 r$ 1a615Ar $ 1E-616569 $ 4,543-460 5 4.0'16595
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

17. PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS (CONTINUED)

B. GOVERNMENTAL wlDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

- The following restatements have been made in the governmental wlde financial statements,
which are reported as an adjustment to the beginning net assets:

-- Govemmental Busines+type
Descriotlon Activities actlvliles Isie!
Netassets, beginning $ a7,862,a59 g 2,190,252 g 90,053,111

To correctbalance oflnterest payable due after
Cancellation of com mercial loan L9,92a 79s2A

_ lo co/recr prior year detened revenue HUO
Program 15.937 15.937

Net assets, beginningas restated $ 87.a7a.796 ri 22101aO S 9o_0aa.976

18. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

- Act No. 94 issued on June 16, 2011 by the Legislature established an incentive plan for the
payment of real and personal property tax dues, beginning on July 14, 2011. This Act provides
an amnesty to all property tax payers forgiving all penalties, charges and interests of the
unpaid principal of pass-due property tax liability. The period that tax payers have to enjoy for

- such benefit is for exactly ninety (90) days beginning on July 14 through October 11, 2011.

- The unpaid property taxes covered under this Act are those related to fiscal year 2OO9-2O1O
and earlier (for real property taxes) and for 2008 and earlier for personal property tax.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
AUTONOMOUS MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO

BUDGEIARY COMPARISON-GENERAL FUND
(SEE NOTES TO BUDGEIARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

g!dEeledAmounts
OriCiinal Final

REVENUISI

Munic pal license tax
Munic pal sales a.d use lax
L censes, pemits and other oca taxes

EXPENDITURE5, ENCUMBRANCESAND OTHER
FINANCINC USES:

Culture and rec.eation
Operating t6nsler to other fund

20949457 21.720.753

$ 9,024.340
4.125,250
1,204,000
1,420,000
3,276,267

125,000
30.000

535,000
1.310.000

11,769.504
2,745,520
6,363,565

677,264

$ 9,024,340
4,125,250
1,204,OOO
1,420,000
3,947,763

125,000
30,oo0

535.000
__L!U0,000

10,103304
1,977.160
8,139,059

692,593
aoa.633

$ a.a49,339
3,572.553
1357,460

427,493
3,726,544

114,694
40,417

474,510

19.100_a90

$ (175,001)
(552,697)

153,a60
(594,507)
\22O,619)

(10,306)
10,a17

(120,49O)
r1.106.9201

12,6.19.863

$19,100,490

7,944
71.104

$L9i179138

5 24,760,443

197,667
7T4,2-71

(446.455)

$25"219t66

Totar erpendnurB, encumbran@sand olherrinancing
20 949 457 21 ?26753

EXCESS (DEFICIENCYJ OF REVENUEs OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES, ENCIJMBRANCES AND OTHER
FINANCING SOURCES (US$)

'13,u9,527
1,t31,255
7,927,605

643,463

2rLZ€Olt&3

$ 15.059t93)

Erplanatlon of Drieences:

SourcB/hn s ol r@ur6:
,atual amounG (budgetary basis)"alailable for app.op ation" fiom the budgetary @mpanen ehedule
Differenesbudgetto USGMP:
No. budgeted transte. in
USGMP adjustment to .ewru6

Tolal rere.@s and other flnanclng $ul6 a. reponed on lhe slatment of ,eve.(6, erpendltur6, and changes in

U*YoutflM of l@ures:
Act!alamounts (budgetary basis)"tota I cha rges to appropriations" from the budgetary @mpaison $hedule
Difierenc*budget to USGMP:
Nonbudgeted expenditu16
Prioryear encumb.anc6 re@rded as cutrenty€r expend tures for USGAAP basis
curent year encumbares recorded as expenditu.es tor budgetary puDoss

Total erpendnur6 and o$er lin.n.ing us as eported on the slalement of revenues, expendituE, and .hanges ln

(3,546.219)
245,905
211,454
49,130

13 o39 7301

$15-059591)
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

AUTONOMOUS MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO

NOTES TO BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE-GENERAL FUND

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

1. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

A. Budeetarv Control

The Municipality's annual budget is prepared on the budgetary basis of accounting,
which is not in accordance with USGMP, and represents departmental appropriations
recommended by the [rayor and approved by the lvunicipal Legislature prior to the
beginning of the fiscal year. Amendments to the budget require the approval of the
N.4unicipal Legislature. Transfers of appropriations within the budget, known as lvayor's
Resolutions, do not require the approval ofthe lMunicipal Legislature.

The N4unicipality prepares its annual budget including the operations of the general fund.
For budgetary purposes, encumbrance accounting is used. The encumbrances (i.e.,
purchase orders, contracts) are considered expenditures when incurred. For USGMP
reporting purposes, encumbrances outstanding at yearend are reported as reservations
of fund balances and do not constitute expenditures or liabilities because the
commitments will be honored during the su bseq uent year.

The unencumbered balance of any appropriation at the end of the fiscal year will lapse
at the end of such fiscal year. Other appropriations, mainly capital project
appropriations, are continuing accounts for which the Municipal Legislature has
authorized that an unspent balance from the prior year be carried forward and made
available for current spending.

The annual budget as presented in the Budgetary Comparison Schedul+General Fund is
the budget ordina nce at June 30,2011 representingthe original budget. Therewere no
supplemental appropriations for the year ended June 30, 2011.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
AUTONOMOUS MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

YEAR ENDEDJUNE 30, 2011

: Federal Grantoy'Pasethrough
Federal Pass-through
CFDA Entity ldentirying

Grantor/Program or Cluster Title Number Number Expenditures

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE:

Pass-through the Commonwealth of Puerto
Rico Department of Education:

Child and Adult Care Food Program 10.558 Not Available $ 181,736

Total U.S. Department of Agriculture

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN
DEVELOPMENT:

Direct Program:
Community Development Block Grant -
Section 108 Loan Guarantees 74-24A NotAvailable

Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher

74L,736

L4.877

53,760

!,475,796Program

Pass-through the Commonwealth of
Puerto Rico Office ofthe Commissioner
of lMunicipalAffairs:
Community Development Block Grant -

State Program
ot-FD-22
o2-FC 22
02-AB-22
03-4822
o3-FC22

o4-AB OO2

o4-FCOO2

pass through the commonwealth of puerto 
l4'22a o4-FGoo4

Rico lMunicipality of San Juan;
Housing Opportunities for Persons with
AIDS (HOPWA) 74.247 Not Available

- Pass-through the Commonwealth of Puerto
Rico Family Depanment:

- Homelessness Prevention and Rapid Re-

506,772

27,796

- Housing Program (Recovery Act funded) 14.257 Not Available 377 ,236
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

AUTONOMOUS MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Federal
Passthrough

Entity
Federal G ra nto y'Pass-th ro ugh CFDA ldentirying
Grantor/Program or Cluster Title Number Number Expenditures

Total U.S. Department of Housing and
Urban Development

U.S DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE:

Pass.through the Commonwealth of Puerto
Rico Office of the Commissioner of
l'4unicipalAffairs:

Community Prevention Grant

Total U.S. Department ofJustice

16.548 Not Available 7A,477

2,775,360

t8,4LL

U.S DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION:

Pass-through the PR Highway
Administration:

Federal Transit Administration- Capital
lnvestment Grants 20 500 2,679

Total U.S. Department of Transportation 2,679

U.S DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
SERVICES:

Pass through the Commonwealth of Puerto
Rico Governor's Office (OGAVE) (Cluster of
Programs)

Special Programs for Aging - Title lll, Part
C - Nutrition Services 93.045 Not Available !L5,957

- Nutrition Services lncentives Program 93.053 NotAvailable 59,7 45
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

AUTONOMOUS MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAT AWARDS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Federal G ra nto r/Pass-th ro ugh
Federal
CFDA

Number

Pas$through
Entity

ldentirying
Number Expend itu resGrantor/PIogram or Cluster Title

U.S DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN

SERVICES: (CONTINUED)

Pass-through the Commonwealth of Puerto
Rico Administration for Children and
Families (ACUDEN):

Community Service Block Grant

ARRA-Child Care and Development Block
Grant

Head Start C,uster
Direct Program:

ARRA-Early Head Start

Pass-through the Commonwealth of Puerto
Rico Administration for Children and
Families (ACUDEN):

Head Start Program

ARRA-Head Start

Total u.S. Department of Health and Human
Services

HOMELAND

93.709 Not Available 7,24A,709

93.569

93.575

Not Available

Not Available

3\A!4

3,584

2,542,443

].5A,797

93.600

93.708

02-cH-0483-39

Not Available

4,L6r,O49

U.S.DEPARTMENT OF

SECURITY:

Pass-through the Commonwealth of Puerto

Rico Emergency lvlanagement Agency:

Hazard Mitigation Grant 97.039

Homeland Security Grant Program 97.067

Total U.S. Department of Homeland Security

TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL

AWARDS

37,577

19,928

57,505

$ 7,196,680

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofthis schedule
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
AUTONOMOUS IVUNICIPALITY OF DORADO

NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

A. BASIS OF PRESENTATION:

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards includes the federal grant
activity of the Autonomous Municipality of Dorado and is presented on the modified
accrual basis of accounting. The basis of accounting is the same used to prepare the fund
financialstatements. The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the
requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Loca/ Governments, and Non-Profit
OrEjanizations.

b.RETATIONSHIP TO FEDERAL FINANCIAL REPORTS:

Amounts reported in the accompanying Schedule are included in the Capital Project Fund-
Federal grants and Other Governmental Funds in the Municipality's fund financial
statements. The reconciliation between the expenditures in the fund financial statements
and the expenditures in the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is as follows:

Description Special
Revenue Fund

Head Stan

C€pital
Projects Federal

Grants

other Total
Govemmental

Funds

Per Schedule of
Expenditures of Federal

Non -federal programs
Expenditures

Total expenditures in the
basic financial
statements

4,131,645

378,000

7,276 $ 3,063,779 $ 7,196,680

494,145 7,276,145

4,509,685 L,2r6 $ 3,961,924 $ 8,472,82s
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REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND
OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN

ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENTAUDITING STANDARDS

To the Honorable Mayor
and the Munlcipal Legislature
Autonomous Municipality o, Dorado
Dorado, Puerto Rico

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information ofthe Autonomous
Municipality of Dorado, Puerto Rico, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2011, which
collectively comprise the Municipality's basic financial statements and have issued our report
thereon dated December 23,2oll. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States.

lnternal Control Over Financial ReoortinE
ln planning and performing our audit, we considered the Autonomous Municipality of
Dorado's internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing
procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Autonomous Municipality of
Dorado's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Autonomous Municipality of Dorado's internal control over
financial reporting.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A rnateria, weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencles, in internal control such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will no1 be
prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose
described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all
deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that might be deficiencies, significant
deficiencies, or material weakness. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over
financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses, as described above. However,
we identified certain deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting, described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs that we consider to be significant
deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting. Significant deficiencies are described
in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item LL4L. A significant
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Callc Paran, *16A6, El Ccrczal, San Juan, P,R, 00926-3144 - Tcl. (?87) 771-8014 I Fzx (781) 76a-9311



REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND
OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN

ACCORDANCE wlTH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STAIVDARDS (CONTINUED)

Comoliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Autonomous Municipality of
Dorado's financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements,
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of
financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an
opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters
that are required to be reported undet Government AuditinE Standards.

We noted certain other matters that we reported to management of the Autonomous
Municipality of Dorado in a separate letter dated December 23, 2011.

The Autonomous Municipality of Dorado's response to the findings identified in our audit is
described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. We did not audit
Autonomous Municlpality of Do,ado's response and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management and federal
awarding agencies and pass-through entities. However, this report is a matter of public record
and its distribution is not limited.

/,"m!w.W,'bc-
San Juan, Puerto Rico
December 23, 2011

Stamp No. 2575543 ofthe Puerto Rico
Society of Certified Public Accountants
was affixed to the record copy ofthis repon.

/
I \,

Ldpez-l'ega, C PA, PSC

Cenifi.,l Prbl;. A.counr.nrs / \lnnasenreol Advi\r.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE wlTH REQUIREMENTS THAT COULD
HAVE A DIRECT AND MATERIAL EFFECI ON EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL

CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE wlTH OMB CIRCULAR A.133

To the Honorable Mayor
and the Municipal Legislature
Autonomous Municipality of Dorado
Dorado, Puerto Rlco

Comoliance
We have audited the Autonomous Municipality of Dorado's compliance with the types of
compliance requirements described in the OMB Cicular A-733 Compliance Supplement thal
could have a direct and material effect on each of the Autonomous Municlpallty of Dorado's
major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2011. The Autonomous Municipality of
Dorado's major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of
the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the
requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to each of its major federal
programs is the responsibility of the Autonomous Municipality ot Dorado's management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on the Autonomous Municipality of Dorado's
compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits
contained ln Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States; and OMB Circular A133, .ludits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit
Or$anizations.'lhose standards and Ol\48 CircularA-133 require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance [,ith the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a
major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about
the Autonomous Municipality o, Dorado's compliance with those requirements and
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We
believe that our audlt provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide
a legal determination of the Autonomous Municipality of Dorado's compliance with those
requirements.

As described in items 11-08 through 11-10 in the accompanying schedule of findings and
questions costs, the Autonomous Municlpallty of Dorado did not comply with requirements
regarding Matching, Level of Effort, Earmarking and Reporting that are applicable to its Head
Start Program Cluster (Head Start CFDA 93.600, ARRA-Head Start CFDA-93.708 &.ARRA-
Early Head Start). Compliance with such requirements is necessary, in our opinion, for the
Autonomous Municipality of Dorado to comply with the requirements applicable to that
progra m.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE wlTH REQUIREMENTS THAT COULD
HAVE A DIRECTAND MATERIAL EFFECT ON EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL

CoNTROL OVER COMPLTANCE tN ACCORDANCE WTH OMB CTRCULAR A133 (CONTTNUED)

ln our opinion, except for the noncompliance described in the preceding paragraph, the
Autonomous Municipality o, Dorado complied in all material respects, with the compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its
major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2011. The results of our auditing
procedures also disclosed other instances of noncompliance with those requirements, which
are required to be reported in accordance with ON4B Circular A-133 and whlch are described
in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as items 1m2 through 11-
o7.

lnternal Control Over Compliance
N4anagement of the Autonomous Municlpality of Doiado is responsible for establishing and
maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to federal programs. ln planning and performing
our audit, we considered the Autonomous Municipallty of Dorado,s internal control over
compliance with the requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major
federal program to determine the auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our
opinion on compliance and to test and report on internal control over compliance in
accordance with OMB Circular A,133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion
on the effectiveness of Autonomous Municipality of Dorado's internal control over
compliance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in
the preceding paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control
over compliance that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses and therefore,
there can be no assurance that all deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material
weaknesses have been identified, However, as discussed belo\,v, we identified certain
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses
and other deficiencies that we consider to be significant deficiencies,

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a
control over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a
type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A m aterial weakness
in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal
control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be
prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. We consider the deficiencies in
internal control over compliance described in the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs as items 1108 through 11-10 to be material weaknesses.

)

T \t
I.6pez-l'e gtt, C PA, PSC

Certifi.,! Putli! A.courknrs / Nlrnr!cnrcnl Advi!,r
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE wlTH REQUIREMENTS THAT COULD
HAVE A DIRECT AND MATERIAL EFFECT ON EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL

ooNTROL OVER COMPLTANCE tN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CtRCUTAR A-133 (CONTTNUED)

A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over
compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. We
consider the deficiencies in internal control over compliance described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs as items 11-02 through 1rc7 to be significant
deficiencies.

The Autonomous Municipality of Dorado's responses to the findings identified in our audit are
described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. We did not audit
Autonomous Municlpality of Dorado's responses and, accordingly, we express no opinion on
the responses.

We also noted other matters involving the internal control over compliance and certain
immaterial instance of noncompliance, which we have reported to management of the
Autonomous Municipality of Dorado in a separate letter dated March 76,2072.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management and federal
awarding agencies and paslthrough entities. However, this report is a matter of public record
and its distribution is not limited.

/"^lw"cfr bc-
LOPEZ.VEGA, CTA, PSC '
San Juan, Puerto Rico
March 16,20\2

Stamp No. 2575544 ofthe Puerto Rico
Society of Certified Public Accountants
was affixed to the record copy of this report

l,'6pez-lbga, CPA, PSC

rnls , MaDrqchcdi Advisor.Certifir,l P'rhii! Ac.(f rrr
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

AUTONOMOUS MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Section I - Summaryof Auditor's Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditor's repon issued: Unqualified

lnternal control over financial reporting:
Material weakness identified? Yes No X
Significant deficiencies identified not considered to
be materialweaknesses? Yes X None reported

- Noncompliance material to financial statements Yes No X
noted?

Federal awards

lnternal Control over major programs:
lMaterial weakness identifled? Yes X No
Significant deficiencies identified not considered to
be material weaknesses? Yes X None reported

- Type of auditor's report issued on compliance
for major programs:

Any audit findings disclosed that are required
to be reported in accordance with Circular
A-133, Section .510(a)?

ldentification of major programs:

CFDA Number

lJnqualmed, except for Qualified for
Head Start Cluster(Head Start Program
CFDA 93.600, ARRA'Head StaTt CFDA
93.704 & ARRA-Early Head Start CFDA
93.709)

Yes X No

Name of Federal Program orCluster
44.224
a4.257

14_a7A

93.600
93.708
93.709

Community Developrnent Block Grant - State Program
Homelessness Prevention and Rapid Re-Housing Program-

Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher Program
Head Start Cluster:
Head Start Program
ARRA-Head Start
ARRA-Early Head Start

- Dollar threshold used to distinguish
between Type A and Type B programs

- Auditee qualified as low'risk auditee?

$ 300,000

Yes No X
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

AUTONOMOUS MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Section ll - Financial Statements Findings

FindingReference LL41,

- Requirement Financial Reporting - Accounting Records

statement of condition During our examination of the lvunicipality's accounting system, we
noted that the Municipality's accounting records for its Local, State and
Federal Funds does not provide modified basis financial statements.
Also, the accounting system does not offer subsidiaries to produce

- government-wide financial statements. The computerized system
authorized by the Office ofthe Commissioner of lMunicipal Affairs (OCAN/|)

and manual systems maintained by the finance department personnel,
do not provide adequate and effective financial information to generate -
the basic financial statements since the account balances were affected

y accounting errors in the first years of the system operations.

Therefore, the N4unicipality hires the professional services of local
accounting firms to perform the required adjustment entries to convert
its accounting records from cash basis to modified and then to accrual
basis and compile the necessary information as required by GMP and
State Act 81.

criteria Article 8.010 of State Act Number 81 of August 30, 1991 states that the
lMunicipality should maintain an effective and updated accounting
system.

ca use of condition The Municipality did not establish effective internal control over the
transactions recorded on its accounting records. Also, the accounting
data is not summarized in the form of a double-entry general ledger
record.

- Effect ofcondition The Municipality accounting system did not provide updated and
complete financial information that present the financial position and
the result of operations and the change in fund balances. Such
information is necessary to take management decisions.

Recommendation We recommend that the lrunicipality should establish internal control

- procedures in order to maintain an accounting system thai contains
information pertaining to authorizations, obligations, unobligated
balances, assets, liabilities, outlays or expenditures, interfund
transactions, etc.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

AUTONOMOUS MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

- Section ll - Financial Statements Findings

FindingReference 11-01(Continued)

questioned costs None

Management ResPonse

And corrective Action The Commissioner of lvlunicipal Affairs ('OCAM"), amended the Law so

that the Municipality, could select the accounting system, according to

- the Generally Accepted Accounting Principles. The Municipality prepared

the Accounting System Requirements for the requests of proposal for the

_ implementation of the new accounting software. Once the situation is

olved the l\4unicipality expects to fully comply with the auditor's
recommendation.

- lmplementation datei January,2ol4

- Responsible Person: l\,4r. Luis R. Sierra Salgado- Director of Finance
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

AUTONOMOUS MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED IUNE 30, 2011

Section lll - Mayor Federal Program Award Findings and Questioned Costs

Criteria

Find inEI Reference

Program

Requirement

Statement of Condition

Cause of Condition

Effect ol condition

Recommendation

Questioned Costs

ManaElement Response

LL-O2

section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers (CFDA. No. 14.871); U.S.

Department of Housing and Urban Development

Special Test-Depository Agreements

We noted that the Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher Program did not
comply with the compliance requirement of Depository Agreements. The
PHA is required to enter into depositary agreement with their financial
institutions in the iorm required by HUD. (Form HUD-51999)

24 CFR Subpart D, Section 982.156 states. (c) The PHA must enter into
an agreement with the depositary in the form required by HUD. (d) lf
required under a written freeze notice from HUD to the depositary: (i)The
depositary may not permit any withdrawal by the PHA of funds held
under the depositary unless expressly authorized by written notice from
HUD to the depositary: and (ii) The depositary must permit withdrawals
of such funds by HUD. (2) HIJD must send the PHA a copy of the freeze
notice from HUD to the depositary.

The Program is not performing an effective review of compliance
requirement that are required by HUD.

The PHA is not in compliance with laws and established regulation as
prescribed by HUD.

Procedures should be implemented to ascertain that the PHA complies
with the established Federal Regulation, as prescribed by Hl.JD.

None

The Program will take procedures to comply with the preparation of Form
HUD51999, Depository Agreement. The lMunicipality will submit a

corrective action plan outlining this finding to be corrected in a detail
manner no later than Match,2072.

Implementation Date. March, 2OL2

Responsible Person: Maria l. Molina
Federal Program Department Director
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

AUTONOMOUS MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

!. Section lll - Major FederalAward Program Findings and Questioned Costs

FindlnE Reterence 1103

- program Homelessness Prevention and Rapid Re-housing Paogram - Recovery
Act Funded (CFDA. No. 14.257); U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Developmenq Pass through the commonwealth of Puerto Rico -
Department of the Family

Requirement Activities Allowed or Unallowed Test

statement of condition During our examination of five (5) participant's files, we found the
following exceptions:

a. Two(2) pa rticipant files d id not include the certification of income tax
for the last five years.

b. Three (3) participant files did not include the Debt Certification of the

- Department of Treasury.

c. ln four (4) cases, the Form HPRP-22 "Formulario de Determinaci6n
de Elegibilidad y Olorgaci6n de Ayuda" was made later than fourteen

- days (14) after signing of the application form.

- O. ln four (4) cases, the Voucher (HPRP-23) was delivered before

- determining the eligibility.

e. ln three (3) cases, the Form HPRP-24 "Solicitud para Aprobaci6n de

- la Unidad" was made before the Form HPRP-22 "Formulario de
- Determinaci6n de Elegibilidad y Otorgaci6n de Ayuda".

- f. lnthree (3)cases, the Form HPRP-2s "lnspeccion de la Vivienda" was
made before the Form HPRP-22 "Formulario de Determinaci6n de
Elegibilidad y Otorgacion de Ayuda".

g. ln two (2) cases, the inspection was not made duringthe five (5) days
after the request for approval of the housing unit.

h. ln two (2) cases, the Form HPRP-3 "Hoja de Seguimiento de Ayuda y

- Apoyo" was not available for our examination.

i. ln two (2) cases, the Form HPRP4 "Autorizaci6n para examinar
documentos' was not signed by participants of eighteen (18) years or

- older.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

AUTONOMOUS MUNICIPALIry OF DORADO

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

- Section lll - Major FederalAward Program FindinEF and Questioned Costs

FtndtngReference 1103(Continued)

- j. ln four (4) cases, the Voucher HPRP-23 and the Form HPRP-22

'Formulario de determinaci6n de elegibilidad y otorgaci6n de ayuda"
was signed by the same Person.

k. In three (3) cases, the Form HPRP-13 "Certificaci6n de lngresos por

_ Activos' was not available for our examination.

l. ln one (1) case, the Certification of the l\4unicipal Revenue Collection
Center was not available for our examination.

m. ln one (1)case, the Form HPRP-17 "Hoja de Calculos de lngresos" did

_ not include the annua I income nor the date of the issua nce.

- n. ln two (2) cases, the Form HPRP-1s "Formulario de lnformaci6n del

- Participante para HMIS" for the re-evaluation was not available for
our examination.

_ o. ln one (1) case, the file did not include copy of the social security

, "ard 
of two members of the family.

_ p. ln one (1) case, the file did not include photo of one member of the
family.

_ q. ln one (1) case, the Form HPRP-1O "Certificaci6n de lngresos" was
v not available for our examination.

- r. ln three (3) cases, the Form HPRP-26 "Formulario de Certificaci6n de

I.X'|,J*X'J fi,'" il,iX"::l':" Ht.,Tili 'o"' the Form HPRP-24

s. ln two (2) cases, the file did not include the Certification of the
Nutrition Assistance Program.

t. ln one (1) case, the Form HPRP-21 "Formulario de Evaluaci6n de
Alternativas de Vivienda y Recursos Financieros y de Apoyo" was not

- available for our examination.

u. ln one (1) case, the HPRP-24 "Solicitud para Aprobaci6n de la

- Unidad" is a copy not an original form.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

AUTONOMOUS MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

- Section lll - Major Federal Award Program Findings and Questioned Costs

Finding Reference 1m3 (Continued)

v. ln one (1) case, the HPRP-24 "solicitud para Aprobacion de la
Unidad" was not signed by the participant.

w- ln one (1) case, the Form HPRP-19 "Certificaci6n de lngresos por
Empleo" was not signed by the head interviewer,

x. ln one (1) case, the Form HPRP-1g "Certificaci6n de lngresos por
Empleo" did not includethe date ofthe issuance.

y. ln one (1) case, the Form HPRP-2g "Hoja de Seguimiento" did not
describe the actions taken by the program functionary.

ln our Waiting List Test for Homelessness Prevention and Rapid Re-

_ housing Program we identified the following:

a. ln thirty two (32) cases, the Waiting List did not include the time of
application.

b. ln twelve (12) cases, the Waiting List did not include the family unit
stze.

c. In two (2) cases, the Waiting List did not include the date of
application.

Notice Section lV, (D) (1) indicated that grantees are responsible for
verifying and documenting the individuals' risk of homelessness that
qualifies them for receiving rental assistance. HUD requires grantees
and/or sub grantees to evaluate and certify the eligibility of program
participants. Notice Section IV, (E) (1) required submission documents,
Also, the Nlunicipality has a Housing Prevention and Rapid Rehousing
Program Operational lvanual.

ca use of condition The Municipality's controls and procedures failed to assure that the
participants files include all the required documents to comply with the
program requirements. Also, the Municipality did not maintain an
adequate waiting list as required by Federal Regulation.

Effect of condition The Program is not in compliance with Notice Section lV, (D, E) (1) and
with the procedures manual issued by the Family Department.

, Criteria
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

AUTONOMOUS MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONNNUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Section lll - Major FederalAwaid Program Findings and Questioned Costs

Find inEl Reference

Questioned Costs

IvlanaElement Response
and Cofiectlve Actlon

1103 (Continued)

We recommend management to follow the procedures established in the
Housing Prevention and Rapid Rehousing Program Operational Manual,
including the use of the forms included on it. Also, to establish control
procedures to maintain a waiting list with all information required by the
Federal Regulation, This control must permit proper tracing of
participants selected in the waiting list in order to assure the selection
from the top of the waiting list.

None

The Municipality is in the process of preparing a checklist to establish
monitoring procedures and assure that the files of the participants
include all documents required by the Housing Prevention and Rapid
Rehousing Program Operational l\4anual of Family Department.

lmplementation date: Aptil, 2072

Responsible Person: f rs. lMaria l. lvlolina, Housing Director
and Caroline Pag6n, HPRP Technician.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

AUTONOMOUS MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Section lll - Major FederalAward Program Findings and Questioned Costs

Finding Reference

Program

Requirement

Statement of Condition

LLo4

Homelessness Prevention and Rapid Rehousing Program - Recovery
Act Funded (CFDA. No. 14.257); U.S. Department of Housing and lJrban
Development; Pass through the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico - Office
Department of the Family

Cash Management

We performed a Cash Management Test and after our procedures, we
found that during the current fiscal year, the Program maintained a
monthly average cash balance in books of approximately $27,956. Also,
at June 30, 2011, the cash balance in books was $40,240.

ln addition, during four (4) months the bank reconciliations reflected an
overd raft.

Also, in our Cash l\,4anagement- Advance Test, we found that in seven (7)
cases the cash requisition was not signed by a responsible official.

Code of Federal Regulations 24, Subpart C, Sec. 85.20 (b) (7) requires a
cash management system in order to minimize the time elapsed
between the transfer of funds from the pass-through grantor and
disbursements made by the grantee.

The Program disbursements procedures failed to assure that the funds
requested and received from the Pass-through Grantor be disbursed in
compliance with the Code of Federal Regulations Requirements.

The Program is not in compliance with Code of Federal Regulations 24,
Subpart C, Sec. 85.2O (b) (7).

We recommend management to strengthen it's disbursement
procedures to minimize the time elapsed between the transfer of funds
from the Pass-through Grantor and the disbursements made by the
Program.

None

lnstructions were given to the program accountant to establish the
adequate control procedures to assure that the transfers between
accounts are identified correctly. Also, we review and compare the
reconciliations prepared by the program accountant with the
reconciliations prepared by the Municipality to avoid differences.

Criteria

Cause of Condition

Effect of Condition

Recomme6datlon

Questioned Costs

Management Response
and Corrective Action
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

AUTONOMOUS MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

- Section lll - Major FederalAward Program Findin8s and Questioned costs

Finding Reference 1rc4 (Continued)

- Management Response
and Corrective Action

lmplementation datet Aptil, 2012

Responsible Person: Mrs. l\4aria l. Molina, Federal Program Department
irector and lMr. Luis Sierra, Finance Director,
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
AUTONOMOUS MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO

ScHEDULE OF FTNDTNGS AND QUESTTONED COSTS (CONTTNUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Section lll - lvlajor FederalAward Program Findings and Questioned Costs

Flnding Reference

Program

Requhement

Statement of Condition

LL45

Homelessness Prevention and Rapid Re.housing Program - Recovery
Act Funded (CFDA. No. L4.257\; U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development; Pass through the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico - Office
Department of the Family

Reporting Test

ln our Reporting Test, we observed the following exceptions:

a. We found footing error in the N4onthly Expenditure Report (Form
HPRP 428). (December 2010)

b. ln eight (8) cases, the Monthly Expenditure Report (Form HPRP
428) available was not signed by the fiscal agent and the program
director.

c. ln three (3) cases, the Monthly Expenditure Report (Form HPRP
428) available was not signed by the program director,

d. We found differences between the amounts reported as federal
expenditures in the N,4onthly Expenditure Report (August,
November, December 2O1O and February, lvlarch 2011) and the
amounts detailed in the general ledger.

ln seven (7) cases, the lMonthly Performance Report (Form HPRP-
33) was not available for our examination. (October 2010, January,
February, N4arch, April, lMay and June 2011)

ln three (3) cases, the lMonthly Performance Report (Form HPRP-

33) was submitted to the Family Department after the due date.
(July, August and November 2010)

We found differences between the amounts reported as federal
expenditures in the Monthly Performance Report (Form HPRP-33)
(November to December 2010) and the amounts detailed in the
general ledger. This report was made detailing the amounts of two
(2) months.

e.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

AUTONOMOUS MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Section lll - Major Federal Award Program Findings and Questioned Costs

Finding Reterence

Criteria

Cause of Condltion

Effect of condition

Recommendation

0uestioned Costs

Management Response
and Corective Action

1m5 (Continued)

Code of Federal Regulations 24, Subpart C, Sec.85.2O (b) (2) requires
that the grantees and subgrantees must maintain records which
adequately identify the source and application of funds provided for
financially-assisted activities. These records must contain information
pertaining to grant or subgrant awards and authorizations, obligations,
unobligated balances, assets, liabilities, outlays or expenditures, and
income.

The Program failed to maintain elfective control and accountability for all
subgrant cash.

The Program is not in compliance with Code of Federal Regulations 24,
Subpart C, Sec.85.20 (b) (2).

We recommend management that the required reports are prepared
including all the required information and establish monitoring
procedures to assure the correctness of the reports.

None

The reports are prepared including all the required information . Also, we
establish monitoring procedures to assure the correctness of the
reports.

lmplementation datei Aptil, 2072

Responsible Person: lvlrs. Mari'a l- lMolina, Federal Program Department
Director and lvlr. Adier Concepci6n, Program Accountant
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
AUTONOMOUS MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Section lll - Mayor FederalAward Program Findings and Questioned Costs

FlndlngReference 11-06

Proglram Head Start Cluster; Head Start (CFDA. No. 93.600); lJ.S. Department of
Health and Human Services; Pass through State - Commonwealth of
Puerto Rico Administration for Children and Families.
ARRA Head Start (CFDA. No. 93.708); U.S. Department of Health and
Human Services; Pass through State - Commonlvealth of Puerto Rico
Administration lor Children and Families.
ARRA Early Head Start (CFDA. No.93.709); U.S. Department of Health
and Human Services.

Requlrement Cash Management

Statement of Condition DuringourCash Nlanagement Test to Head Start Program, we found the
following exceptions:

a. We noted that the Program requested funds that were not disbursed
on a reasonable lapse of time.

b. During two (2) months the bank reconciliations reflected an
overdraft.

ln our Cash lManagement Test of ARRA Early Head Start Program, we
found the following:

a. We noted that the Program requested funds that were not disbursed
on a reasonable lapse of time.

b. During nine (9) months the bank reconciliations reflected an
overd raft.

criteria Code of Federal Regulations 45, Subpart C, Section 92,20 (bl (7),
requires a cash management system in order to minimize the time
elapsed between the transfer of funds from the U.S. Treasury and the
disbursements made by the grantee.

Cause of Condition There are no adequate internal controls to assure that funds requested
to the federal agency are disbursed for immediate needs.

Effect of Co.dition The Program is not in compliance with Code of Federal Regulations 45,
Subpart C, Section 92.2O (bl (7).
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

AUTONOMOUS MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

- Section lll - Mayor Federal Award Program FindingF and Questioned Costs

Finding Reference 1rc6 (Continued)

Recommendation We recommend management to follow cash management system
procedures developed by it in order to assure that funds requested are
disbursed as required by the regulation.

Questloned costs None

* Management Response
And corective Actlon
tor Head Start Program The program follows "ACUDEN" procedures for the request and

disbursement of federal funds. But, also a fiscal agent for 'ACUDEN"
made the commitment with the program to verify and establish a
effective process for the request and disbursement of federal funds and

- eliminate this finding. ln addition, the Municipality established a new
bank account to contribute at least 20 percent of the cost of the

- program, sothe program can maintain low bank balances.

lmplementation Datei Aptil, 2Ol2

- Responsible Person:Tania Garcia - Program Director
eresa Acevedo - Pogram Accountant

lllanaElement Response
- and corrective Action

Ior ARRA Eaily Head Start
ProElram The Program Accountant for the period 2010-2011 was lay off from his

- duties. On October 2077, Mr. Reyes was announcing as the new
- accountant for the program; and he will be working with the finding.

- lmplementation Datei April,2072

Responsible Person:Tania Garcia - Program Director
Daniel Reyes - Program Accountant
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Section lll - Mayor Federal Award Program Findings and Questioned Costs

Finding Relercnce LL-O1

Program Head Start Cluster; Head Start (CFDA. No.93.600); U.S. Department of
Health and Human Services; Pass through State - Commonwealth of

_ Puerto Rico Administration for Children and Families.
- ARRA Head Start (CFDA. No. 93.708); U.S. Department of Health and

Human Services; Pass through State - Commonwealth of Puerto Rico
Administration tor Children and Families.
ARRA Early Head Start (CFDA. No.93.709); U.S. Department of Health
and Human Seruices.

Requirement Equipment and Real Property Management

sratement of condtflon During our equipment test, to ARRA Early Head Start Program, we found
the following exceptions:

a. The equipment was not marked with property tags.

b. ln three (3) cases, the equipment was not included in the Property
ubsidiary Ledger.

- criteria Code of Federal Regulations 45, Subpart C Sec.92.32 (d) (1) require that
the property records must be maintained that include a description of

- the property, a serial number or other identification number, the source
of property, who holds title, the acquisition date, and cost of the
property, percentage of Federal participation in the cost of the property,
the location, use and condition of the property, and any ultimate
disposition data including the date of disposal and sale price of the

_ property.

cause ofcondition There are no adequate internal controls to assure that the property
record are maintained as requested to the federal agency.

Eflect of condition The Program is not in compliance with Code of Federal Regulations 45,
uboart C, Sec.92.32 (d) (1).

Recommendarion We recommend management to follow the procedures for managing
- equipment whether it is acquired or until disposition takes according to
- regulation requirements.

_ Questioned costs None
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Section lll - Mayor FederalAward Program Findings and Questioned Costs

Find in8i Reference 1m7 (Continued)

Management Response
And corective Action A special team will be put together to mark the equipment with the

property tags. In addition, an inventory will be completed to ensure that
the equipment is accountable and included in the subsidiary ledger.

lmplementation Datet Aptil, 2072

Responsible Person:Tania Garcia - Program Director
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Section lll - fuayor FederalAward Program Findings and Questioned Costs

Find inEi Reference

Program

11{8

Head Start Cluster; Head Start (CFDA. No.93.60O); U.S. Department of
Health and Human Services; Pass through State - Commonwealth of
Puerto Rico Administration for Children and Families.
ARRA Head Start (CFDA. No. 93.708); U.S. Department of Health and
Human Services; Pass through State - Commonwealth of Puerto Rico
Administration lor Children and Families.
ARRA Early Head Start (CFDA. No.93.709); U.S- Department of Health
and Human Services.

Matching, Level of Effort, Earmarking Test

During our lMatching Test to ARRA Early Head Start Program, we found
differences between the amounts reported as cash or in-kind
contributions and federal expenditures detailed in the Federal Financial
Report (Form 425) and the amounts detailed in the general ledger. We
can't verify if the grantee contributed at least 20 percent of the costs of
the program. Also, we noted differences between Federal Financial
Report (Form 425) and supporting documents.

Our Matching Requirements test for Head Start Program revealed the
following:

a) The cash and ln-kind contributions recorded in the accounting record
"Libro de Caja" (a manual cash ledger) which belong to September
2010, did not agree with the amounts recorded in the general ledger.
A difference of $9,924 was identified.

The cash and ln-kind contributions recorded in the accounting record
'Libro de Caja" (a manual cash ledge0 which belong to January 2011,
did not agree with the amounts recorded in the general ledger. A
difference of $1,050 was identified.

The cash and ln-kind contributions recorded in the accounting record
"Libro de Caja" (a manual cash ledgeO which belong N4arch 2010 to
February 2077, did not agree with the amounts recorded in the
general ledger. A difference of $10,976 was identified.

c)

Requirement

Statement ol condltion

b)
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Section lll - Mayor Federal Award Program Findings and Questioned Costs

Flndlng Reference

Criteria

1108 (Continued)

Code of Federal Regulations 45, Subpart C Section 1301.20 (a) (c)
require that the Federal financial assistance granted under the act for a
Head Start program shall not exceed 80 percent of the total costs of the
program. Federal financial assistance awarded to Head Start grantees
for training and technical assistance activities shall be included in the
Federal share in determining the total approved costs of the program.
Such financial assistance is, therefore, subject to the 20 percent non-
Federal matching requirement of this subpart.

Adequate internal controls do not exist to assure the correctness of
closing reports submitted to the federal agencies. The grantee did not
contribute at least 20% of the cost of the program through cash or in-
kind contributions.

The program is not in compliance with the Code of Federal Regulations
45, Subpart C, Section 1301.20 (a) (c).

We recommend grantees must be contribute at least 20 percent of the
cost of the program and document their compliance with this
requirement.

None

lnstructions were given to the program accountant to reconcile any
difference in the closing reports.

lmplementation Date: April, 2012

Responsible Person:Tania Garcia - Program Director
Teresa Acevedo - Program Accountant

The Program Accountant for the period 2010-2011 was lay off from his
duties. ln October 2077, Mt. Reyes was announced as the new
accountant for the program. Additionally, two accountants will be
allocated to re-do the program's ledgers.

lmplementation Datet Ap(il, 2072

Responsible Person: Tania Garci'a - Program Director
Daniel Reyes - Program Accountant
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

AI'TONOMOUS MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Section lll - Mayor FederalAward Program Findings and Questioned Costs

Finding Reference

ProEJram

Requirement

Statement of Condition

11-O9

Head Start Cluster: Head Start (CFDA. No.93.600); U.S. Department of
Health and Human Services; Pass through State - commonwealth of
Puerto Rico Administration for Children and Families.
ARRA Head Staft (CFDA. No. 93.708); U.S. Department of Health and
Human Services; Pass through State - Commonwealth of Puerto Rico
Administration for Children and Families.
ARRA Early Head Start (CFDA. No.93.7Og); lJ.S. Department of Health
and Human Services.

Matching, Level of Effort, Earmarking Test

The accounting system maintained by ARRA Early Head Start Program
did not provide for the classification of financial transactions between
administrative and programmatic costs.

Also, our Earmarking test (15% Administrative Cost Limits) for Head Start
Program revealed the following:

a) The percentage detailed in the Others Categories (Cash and ln-kind),
included in the Table to Compute 15% Administrative Cost was
incorrectly calculated

b) The percentage detailed in the Total PA 22 Federal and non-Federal,
included in the Table to Compute 15% Administrative Cost was
incorrectly calculated.

c) The amounts detailed for Administrative and Programmatic Costs, for
the Equipment Account, did not agree with the amounts included in
the General Ledger. A difference of $81.00 was identified.

Code of Federal Regulations 45, Subpart C, Section 92.20 (a) (2) states
that the grantees must maintain fiscal controls and accounting
procedures sufficient to permit the tracing of funds to a level of
expenditures adequate to establish that such funds have not been used
in violation of the restriction and prohibitions of applicable statutes.

The ARRA-Early Head Start Program accounting records did not provide a
chart of accounts to individually account, programmatic and
administrative expenditures. For the Head Start Program the accounting
records do not agree with final reports.

Criteria

Cause of Condition
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SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2011

Section lll - Mayor FederalAward Program Findings and Questioned Costs

Find inEi Reference 11{9 (Continued)

Efrect or condition The program is not in-compliance with 45 CFR, Subpart C, Section 92.20
(a) (2).

Recommendation We recommend management to modify the accounting system chart of
accounts to create a separate account for administrative and
programmatic expenditures. Also, cost with dual benefits (administrative
and programmatic) should be identified and allocated appropriately
using a cost-benefit proportion.

Questioned Costs NOne

Management Response
And corective Action
Head start Program lnstructions were given to the program accountant to reconcile any

difference in the closing reports.

I mplementation Dalet Aptil, 2072

Responsible Person: Tania Garcia - Program Director
Teresa Acevedo - Program Accountant

- l anagement Response
And corective Action
ARRA-Earry Head srarr The Program Accountant for the petiod 2O!O-2OL| was lay off from his

duties. On October 2011, l\4r. Reyes was announced as the new
accountant for the program. Additional, two accountants will be

mplementation Date: Aotil, 20 12

Responsible Person:Tania Garci'a - Program Director
Daniel Reyes - Program Accountant
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AUTONOMOUS MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Section lll - Major FederalAward Program Findings and Questioned Costs

Findlng Reference

ProElram

LL-LO

Head Start Cluster: Head Start (CFDA. No. 93.600); U.S. Department of
Health and Human Services; Pass through State - Commonwealth of
Pue,to Rico Administration for Children and Families.
ARRA Head Start (CFDA. No. 93.708); U.S. Department of Health and
Human Services; Pass through State - Commonwealth of Puerto Rico
Administration tor Children and Families.
ARRA Early Head Start (CFDA. No.93.7Og); U.S. Department of Health
and Human Services.

Reporting Test

ln our Reporting Test, to Head Start Program, we observed the following
exceptions:

a. The lvlonthly Financial Report and the Table to Compute 15%
Administrative Cost for the program year ended February 28, 2011
were submitted to the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico Administration
for Children and Families after the due date,

b. We found differences between the amounts reported as federal
expenditures in the monthly financial reports (January and February
2011) and in the Closing Report for the Fiscal Year 2011 submitted
to the pass-through agency and the amounts detailed in the cash
register and the general ledger.

c. The expenditures detailed in the monthly financial reports are based
on estimates. As result, the financial reports are not in accordance
with the program accounting records. Differences are not adjusted in
the closing reports. ln addition, we noted that no adequate
procedures exist to document the adjustments posted to the general
ledger accounts.

ln our Reporting Test of ARRA Early Head Start Program:

a. We found differences between the amounts reported as federal
expenditures in the Federal Financial Report (September 2011) and
the amounts detailed in the cash register and the general ledger.

b. We identified differences between the amounts reported in the Trial
Balance and the amounts detailed in the General Ledger.

Requirement

Statement of Condition
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Section lll - Major FederalAward Program Findings and Questioned Costs

FindinEi Reference

Criteria

11-10 (Continued)

Code of Federal Regulations 45, Subpart C, Section 92.20 (b) (1), states
that the grantee must maintain internal control procedures that permits
proper tracing of funds to the accounting records. Also, it requires
accurate, current and complete disclosure offinancial results.

Adequate internal controls do not exist to assure the correctness of
closing reports submitted to the federal agencies.

The program is not in compliance with the Code of Federal Regulations
45, Subpart C, Section 92.20 (b) (1).

We recommend the Program to establish monitoring procedures to
assure the accuracy of accounting records and a correct completion of
the closing reports. The program fiscal area must establish adequate
communication channels with the Finance Department in order to obtain
documental evidence related to obligations issued, cash receipt and
disbursements in a daily manner, in order to be posted in the accounting
register maintained by the Program. The Program fiscal area most
assures that accounting records are updated at the end of each month
in order to prepare accurate reports to the federal agency. ln addition
the accountant must assure that the cash register and the general
ledger are duly reconciled and journal entries posted in the general
ledger and duly documented and explained. We consider that the
Program Director must evaluate the implementation of a computer
accounting software to maintain the program books. Due to the large
volume oftransactions manual books are considered inefficient.

None

lnstructions were given to the program accountant to establish the
adequate control procedures to assure that cash register books and the
general ledger are updated in a timely basis to assure that monthly
reports submitted to the pass-through agency includes actual costs and
not estimates in order to avoid this situation in the future. Also, more
effective controls will be established so that repons are delivered within
the dates set,

Cause of Condition

Effect of Condition

Recommendation

Questioned Costs

Management Response
And Cofiective Action
for Head Stan
Program
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Section lll - Major Federal Award Program Findings and Questioned Costs

Finding Reference 11- 10 (Continued)

Management Response
And Corrective Action
for Head Start

lm plementation Dalei A?til, 20 !2

Responsible Person: Tania Garcia - Program Director
Teresa Acevedo - Program Accountant

Management Response
and corrective Action
forARRA Early Head Start

ProEiram The Program Accountant for the period 2010-2011 was lay off from his

duties. On october 2011, Mr. Reyes was announced as the new
- accountant for the program. Additional, two accountants will be

_ allocated to re-do the program's ledgers.

- lmplementation Dalet APtil,2O!2

Responsible Person:Tania Garcia - Program Director

94



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF DORADO

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Odgnal CFDA No. Cunent Status of Prior Year Aud it Federal Award Find ings _ Part lll Findings
(As required by Ol,lB CircularAl33)- Finding

- Number

LO-O2 14.224
lManapement should strenethen it's disbursement orocedures to
minimize the time elaosed between the transfer of funds from the
Pass-throuEh Grantor and the disbursements made bv the Program.

Corrective action was taken.

10 03 14.477 the comoliance reouirement of Deoositorv Agreements. The PHA is

reouired to enter into depositaN agreement with their financial
institutions in the form reouired bv HuD. (Form HUD-51999)

No corrective action was taken. The auditors reissued the finding for
the current year. Finding Reference 11-02.

10 04 93.600
enrent should follow cash manaEement svstem orocedures

develooed bv it in order to assure that funds reouested are
disbursed as required bv the reEulation.

No corrective action was taken. The auditors reissued the finding for
the current year. Finding Reference 11-06-

10 05 93.600

-M 

including all the reouired
information and submitted in a timelv manner. lf the deadline is not
achievable. a reouest for an extension should be obtained from the
federal aEencv. Also. we recommend that the Municipalitv establish
monitorinE Drocedures to assure the accuracv of accountinp records
and a correct comoletion of the closinE reoorts. The oroqram
accountant must establish adeouate communication channels with

the Finance Deoartment in order to obtain documental evidence
related to cash receiot and disbursements in a dailv manner. in

order to be oosted in the cash re{ister maintained bv the orogram
accountant. This control will assure that accountinE records are

actualized at the end of each month in order to Dreoare accurate
monthlv reoorts to the oass-through a{encv. ln addition. the
accountant must assure that the cash reqister and the Eeneral

ledEer are dulv reconciliated and iournal entries oosted in the
Eeneral led{er are dulv documented and exolained. we consider
that the orogram Director must evaluate the imDlementation of a

comouter accountinA software to maintain the oroEram books due
to a volume of transactions manual books are considered
inefficient.

No corrective action was taken. The auditors reissued the finding for
the current year. Finding Reference 11-10.
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SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS (CONTINUED)
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Original CFDA No. Curent Status of Prior Year Audit Fedelal Award Findings - Part lll Find ings

Finding (Ar required bvOMB CircularA-133)
- Number

o9-o2 93.600 ManaEement should follow cash manaqement svstem orocedures
develooed bv it in order to assure that funds requested are

disbursed as reouired bv the repulation.

No corrective action was taken. The auditors reissued the finding for
the current year. Finding Reference 11-06.

09-04 93.600 The reouired reoorts should be orepared including all the reouired
information and submitted in a timelv manner. lf the deadline is not

achievable. a reouest for an extension should be obtained from the
federal aEencv. Also. we recommend that the lVuniciDalitv establish
monitorinP Drocedures to assure the accuracv of accounting records

and a correct comoletion of the closinE reoorts. The oroEram

accountant must establish adeauate communication channels with

the Finance Deoartment in order to obtain documental evidence
related to cash receiDt and disbursements in a dailv manner, in
order to be oosted in the cash reEister maintained bv the Droaram

accountant. This control will assure that accounting records are

actualized at the end of each month in order to oreoare accurate
monthlv reoorts to the pass-throuph aEencv. ln addition. the
accountant must assure that the cash re{ister and the general

ledEer are dulv reconciliated and iournal entries oosted in the

that the oroEram Director must evaluate the imolementation of a
comouter accounting software to maintain the oroEram books due
to a volume of transactions manual books are considered

inefficient.

No corrective action was taken. The auditors reissued the finding for
the current year. Finding Reference 11-10.

o8-02 93.600 ManaEement should follow cash manaEement svstem orocedures

develooed bv it in order to assure that funds reouested are

disbursed as reouired bv the reEulation

Audit finding is no longer valid since has pass more than two years

since the reports were submitted to the Single Audit Clearinghouse,
The Federal Agency who delegated the funds to the Municipality is

not giving follow up to the finding and has not issued a final decision

respect to the finding
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
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SUMIVIARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

08-03 93.600 The reouired reports should be oreoared includinE all the reouired
information and submitted in a timelv manner. lf the deadline is not
achievable. a reouest for an extension should be obtained from the
federal aqencv. Also. the lMunicioalilv should establish monitorinE
orocedures to assure the accuracv of accountinq records and a
correct comoletion of the closing reDorts. The oroEram accountant
must establish adeouate communication channels with the Finance
Deoartment in order to obtain documental evidence related to cash
receiol and disbursements in a dailv manner. in order to be oosted
in the cash reEister maintained bv the oroEram accountant. This
control will assure that accountinE records are uodated at the end of
each month in order to oreoare accurate monthlv reoorts to the
oass-throuEh agencv. ln addition. the accountant must assure that
lhe cash re{ister and the general ledEer are dulv reconcilialed and

iournal entries oosted in the Eeneral ledEer are dulv documented
and exolained. The oroEram Director must evaluate the
imDlementation of a comouter accountinE software to maintain the
oroEram books due lo a volume of transactions manual books are
considered inefficient.

Audit finding is no longer valid since has pass more than two years
since the reports were submitted to the Single Audit Clearinghouse.
The Federal Agency who delegated the funds to the Municipality is

not giving follow up to the finding and has not issued a final decision
respect to the finding.
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